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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

Quarterly report pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
For the quarterly period ended September 30, 2012

Commission file number 333-182303

EATON CORPORATION LIMITED

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Ireland 98-1059235

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) (IRS Employer Identification Number)

70 Sir John Rogerson’s Quay, Dublin 2, Ireland _

(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

(216) 523-5000
(Registrant's telephone number, including area code)

Not applicable

(Former name, former address and former fiscal year if changed since last
report)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during
the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for

the past 90 days. Yes M No OO0

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to
be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the
registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes M No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See the
definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer O Accelerated filer O Non-accelerated filer O Smaller reporting company M

(Do not check if a smaller reporting
company)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes 00 No
There were 100 Ordinary Shares outstanding as of September 30, 2012.
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ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

EATON CORPORATION LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(In U.S. dollars)
Net sales

Operating expenses

Unrealized foreign exchange loss-net
Loss before income taxes

Income tax expense

Net loss

PART I — FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

2

May 10, 2012
Three months (date of incorporation)
ended to
September 30, 2012 September 30, 2012

— % —

— 7,690
149 67

(149) (7,757)

(149) $ (7,757)
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EATON CORPORATION LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(In U.S. dollars)
Assets
Current assets
Cash
Deferred costs for future issuance of Ordinary Shares
Total assets

Liabilities and shareholders’ deficit
Current liabilities
Payable to Eaton Corporation
Loan payable to Matsack - shareholder
Total current liabilities

Shareholders’ deficit
Ordinary Shares
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated deficit

Total shareholders' deficit

Total liabilities and shareholders' deficit

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

September 30,
2012

23,273
4,753,075

4,776,348

4,753,075
31,028

4,784,103

1
1
(7,757)

(7,755)

4,776,348
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EATON CORPORATION LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(In U.S. dollars)

Operating activities

Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile to net cash used in operating activities
Payable to Eaton Corporation
Deferred costs for future issuance of Ordinary Shares
Unrealized foreign exchange loss-net

Net cash used in operating activities

Financing activities
Proceeds from sale of Ordinary Shares of ECL to Matsack
Proceeds from sale of Ordinary Shares of Abeiron Il Limited to Matsack
Proceeds from loan payable to Matsack - shareholder
Net cash provided by financing activities

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash
Total increase in cash
Cash at the beginning of the period

Cash at the end of the period

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

May 10, 2012
(date of incorporation)
to
September 30, 2012

(7,757)

4,753,075
(4,753,075)
67

(7,690)

30,761

30,763

200

23,273

23,273
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EATON CORPORATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Amounts are in U.S. dollars.

Note 1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements of Eaton Corporation Limited ("ECL" or "Company") have been prepared in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles for interim financial information, the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly,
they do not include all of the information and footnotes required by generally accepted accounting principles for complete financial statements. However, in the
opinion of management, all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals) have been made that are necessary for a fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements for the interim periods.

The interim period results are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the full year. Management has evaluated subsequent events through
the date this Form 10-Q was filed with the SEC.

Note 2. GENERAL INFORMATION

ECL is a private limited company incorporated in Ireland on May 10, 2012, initially under the name Abeiron Limited for the purpose of facilitating the
acquisition by Eaton Corporation (“Eaton™) of Cooper Industries plc ("Cooper™). The principal activity of ECL is an investment holding company and as of
September 30, 2012 it directly owns Abeiron Il Limited, which wholly owns Turlock B.V., Eaton Inc., and Turlock Corporation, all of which are described
below.

On May 21, 2012, Eaton reached an agreement to acquire Cooper (the "Transaction™). Cooper is incorporated in Ireland and is a diversified global
manufacturer of electrical components and tools with sales of $5.4 billion for 2011. At the close of the Transaction, Eaton and Cooper will be combined under
ECL. The total consideration to be received by Cooper shareholders in the Transaction is comprised of both cash and equity and has a value of approximately
$12.9 billion based on the closing share price of Eaton common stock of $50.49 on November 5, 2012. Based on the terms of the Transaction agreement, the
purchase consideration entitles the holder of each ordinary share of Cooper to receive from ECL $39.15 and 0.77479 of an ECL ordinary share. At the close of
the Transaction, the former shareholders of Eaton and Cooper are expected to own approximately 73% and 27% of ECL, respectively. The Transaction was
approved by shareholders of both companies on October 26, 2012, and is subject to receipt of certain regulatory approvals and other customary conditions. The
Transaction is expected to close in the fourth quarter of 2012.

Prior to Eaton and Cooper entering into the Transaction agreement, the following entities were formed or acquired by representatives of Eaton for the
purpose of facilitating the Transaction and have not conducted any unrelated activities:

« ECL

 Abeiron Il Limited: a private limited company incorporated in Ireland initially under the name of Comdell Limited

 Turlock B.V.: a private limited liability company incorporated in the Netherlands initially under the name Wesbar Installatietechniek B.V.
« Eaton Inc.: an Ohio corporation

* Turlock Corporation: an Ohio corporation

The consolidated balance sheet of ECL includes the accounts of ECL and its direct and indirect subsidiaries listed above. Intercompany transactions and
balances have been eliminated.

Items included in these financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which ECL operates (the “functional
currency"). The financial statements are presented in United States dollars, which is ECL's functional currency.
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Note 3. DEBT

On May 21, 2012, Turlock Corporation, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and the Company as guarantor, entered into a 364-day bridge
facility totaling $6.75 billion related to financing the cash portion of the acquisition of Cooper. The bridge facility will be available in a single draw on the
acquisition closing date. At the Company's discretion, the interest rate on the bridge facility may initially be set at either a LIBOR-based rate plus a margin of
1.25%, with increases in margin every 90 days to a maximum margin of 2.50%, or an Alternate Base Rate (ABR) plus the margin for LIBOR loans at any time
minus 1.00%. The ABR is the highest of (a) Prime Rate (as published in the Wall Street Journal), (b) the Federal Funds rate plus 0.50%, and (c) one-month
LIBOR plus 1.00%. Pursuant to a separate agreement, Eaton is responsible for any fees related to the bridge facility. The bridge facility allows for voluntary
prepayment at any time without a premium or penalty. Upon the closing of the acquisition, it is contemplated that certain of the Company's direct and indirect
subsidiaries (including both Eaton and Cooper subsidiaries) will guarantee the bridge facility. It is also contemplated that, upon the closing of the acquisition,
the Company and the same subsidiaries that will guarantee the bridge facility will also guarantee Eaton's obligations under its existing credit facilities,
substantially all existing term debt, term debt issued to finance the acquisition, as well as Cooper's existing term debt. The bridge facility contains customary
events of default, the occurrence of which may accelerate the payment of interest and principal amounts outstanding. The bridge facility is subject to certain
customary affirmative and negative covenants.

Note 4. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Matsack Nominees Limited (Matsack), a shareholder of ECL, has an $82,741 (€64,000) Euro denominated non-interest bearing loan payable on demand to
Eaton.

ECL has a $31,028 (€24,000) Euro denominated non-interest bearing loan payable on demand to Matsack.

ECL's initial investment in 1 Ordinary Share of Abeiron Il was recorded at a cost of $1.00, which equaled the par value of $1.00 per share on May 18, 2012,
the date the beneficial interest in such share was received from Matsack, based on Matsack's cost to acquire such share on that same date.

On May 19, 2012, the Ordinary Share of Abeiron Il was subdivided into 100 shares with a par value of $0.01 per share.

For additional information on related party transactions, see Note 5, Shareholders' Deficit, and Note 7, Subsequent Events.

Note 5. SHAREHOLDERS' DEFICIT

The changes in Shareholders' deficit follow:

Balance at May 10, 2012 (date of incorporation) $ =
Net loss (7,757)
Other comprehensive (loss) income —

Total comprehensive (loss) income (7,757)
Proceeds from sale of Ordinary Shares of ECL to Matsack 1
Proceeds from sale of Ordinary Shares of Abeiron Il Limited to Matsack 1

Balance at September 30, 2012 $ (7,755)
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The components of ECL's authorized and outstanding shares as of September 30, 2012 follow:

Authorized
750,000,000 Ordinary Shares, $0.01 par value $ 7,500,000
40,000 Deferred Ordinary Shares, €1.00 par value 51,713
$ 7,551,713
Outstanding
100 Ordinary Shares, $0.01 par value, issued on May 18, 2012 to Matsack
and affiliates of Matsack $ 1

The holders of Ordinary Shares are entitled to dividends, have voting rights and participate pro rata in the total assets of ECL in the event of its winding up.

ECL incurred $4,753,075 of costs related to the future issuance of Ordinary Shares that were paid by Eaton. These costs were recorded as deferred costs in
the Consolidated Balance Sheet and will be reclassified to Additional paid-in capital when ECL issues Ordinary Shares associated with the Transaction. For
additional information on the Transaction, see Note 2, General Information.

Note 6. INCOME TAXES

The corporate income tax rate in Ireland is 12.5%. The net loss for the period ended September 30, 2012 is not deductible for tax purposes, therefore no
deferred income taxes have been recorded.

Note 7. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On October 19, 2012, Abeiron Il converted all of its Ordinary Shares into Preference Shares and issued 160,200,000 Preference Shares to ECL in exchange
for 160,200,000 of ECL's Ordinary Shares. At the same time, Abeiron Il issued 1 A Ordinary Share to an affiliate of Matsack.

On October 19, 2012, Abeiron 11 contributed 160,200,000 of its ECL Ordinary Shares to Turlock B.V., and thereafter, Turlock B.V. contributed 200,000 of
such shares to Eaton Inc.

On October 19, 2012, the Directors of ECL authorized the capital of ECL to be increased by the creation of 10,000 A Preferred Shares of $1.00 par value
per share.

On October 19, 2012, 10,000 A Preferred Shares of $1.00 par value per share of ECL were issued to Raisa Limited, an affiliate of Matsack. These shares
were issued in exchange for $10,000 of legal services provided by Raisa Limited. The A Preferred Shares are non-voting, have the right to receive dividends at
twice the dividend paid per Ordinary Share, and Raisa Limited has agreed that the A Preferred Shares are to be subject to call by ECL at par value at any time
five years after their issuance.

On October 23, 2012, ECL issued 40,000 Deferred Ordinary Shares at €1.00 par value per share to Matsack for cash of €40,000 ($51,941). The holders of
Deferred Ordinary Shares are not entitled to receive dividends or vote. On a return of assets, whether on liquidation or otherwise, the Deferred Ordinary Shares
shall entitle the holder to the repayment of the amounts paid up on such shares after repayment of the capital paid up on the Ordinary Shares, plus the payment
of $5,000,000 on each of the Ordinary Shares and the holders of the Deferred Ordinary Shares (as such) shall not be entitled to any further participation in the
assets or profits of ECL.

On November 9, 2012, ECL received a $5,288,342 capital contribution from Turlock B.V. These funds were borrowed from Eaton at a fixed annual interest
rate of 0.22% and mature on February 9, 2013.

On November 12, 2012, the Directors of ECL authorized the capital of ECL to be increased by the creation of 10,000,000 Serial Preferred Shares, par value
$0.01 per share.

On November 14, 2012, ECL announced that its indirect subsidiary, Turlock Corporation intends to offer, in a private offering subject to market and other
conditions, senior notes (the "Notes") that it intends to use the net proceeds of to fund a portion of the consideration for the proposed acquisition of Cooper.
The offering of the Notes is expected to close prior to the consummation of the acquisition. Pending consummation of the acquisition, the net proceeds from
this offering will be deposited into an escrow account. If the acquisition is not consummated on or prior to May 21, 2013 for any reason, the proceeds from this
offering will be used to redeem the Notes at a redemption price of 101 percent of the aggregate principal amount of the Notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest
to, but not including, the redemption date.
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Obligations under the Notes will be unsubordinated and unsecured and fully and unconditionally guaranteed (i) upon the closing of the announced offering,
by the Company and certain of the Company's subsidiaries, (ii) substantially concurrently with the consummation of the acquisition and release of net proceeds
from escrow, by certain subsidiaries of Eaton that will guarantee Eaton's revolving credit facilities and substantially all of Eaton's and Cooper's long-term debt
and (iii) within 40 days after the consummation of the acquisition, by Cooper and certain of Cooper's subsidiaries that will guarantee Eaton's revolving credit
facilities and substantially all of Eaton's and Cooper's long-term debt.

ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

Amounts are in U.S. dollars.

COMPANY OVERVIEW

ECL is a private limited company incorporated in Ireland on May 10, 2012, initially under the name Abeiron Limited for the purpose of facilitating the
acquisition by Eaton Corporation ("Eaton™) of Cooper Industries plc ("Cooper™). The principal activity of ECL is an investment holding company and as of
September 30, 2012 it directly owns Abeiron Il Limited, which wholly owns Turlock B.V., Eaton Inc., and Turlock Corporation, all of which are described in
Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of ECL is an investment holding company and as of September 30, 2012 it directly owns Abeiron Il Limited, which wholly owns
Turlock B.V., Eaton Inc., and Turlock Corporation, all of which are described in Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. As ECL is currently an
investment holding company with no products or customers, it does not generate sales revenue.

Loss before income taxes of $149 for the third quarter of 2012 was primarily attributable to the negative impact of foreign currency exchange. Loss before
income taxes of $7,757 for the period from May 10, 2012 (date of incorporation) to September 30, 2012 was primarily attributable to corporate organization
costs.

The corporate income tax rate in Ireland is 12.5%. The net loss for the period ended September 30, 2012 is not deductible for tax purposes, therefore no
deferred income taxes have been recorded.

LIQUIDITY, CAPITAL RESOURCES AND CHANGES IN FINANCIAL CONDITION
Financial Condition and Liquidity

On May 21, 2012, Turlock Corporation, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and the Company as guarantor, entered into a 364-day bridge
facility totaling $6.75 billion related to financing the cash portion of the acquisition of Cooper. The bridge facility will be available in a single draw on the
acquisition closing date. At the Company's discretion, the interest rate on the bridge facility may initially be set at either a LIBOR-based rate plus a margin of
1.25%, with increases in margin every 90 days to a maximum margin of 2.50%, or an Alternate Base Rate (ABR) plus the margin for LIBOR loans at any time
minus 1.00%. The ABR is the highest of (a) Prime Rate (as published in the Wall Street Journal), (b) the Federal Funds rate plus 0.50%, and (c) one-month
LIBOR plus 1.00%. Pursuant to a separate agreement, Eaton is responsible for any fees related to the bridge facility. The bridge facility allows for voluntary
prepayment at any time without a premium or penalty. Upon the closing of the acquisition, it is contemplated that certain of the Company's direct and indirect
subsidiaries (including both Eaton and Cooper subsidiaries) will guarantee the bridge facility. It is also contemplated that, upon the closing of the acquisition,
the Company and the same subsidiaries that will guarantee the bridge facility will also guarantee Eaton's obligations under its existing credit facilities,
substantially all existing term debt, term debt issued to finance the acquisition, as well as Cooper's existing term debt. The bridge facility contains customary
events of default, the occurrence of which may accelerate the payment of interest and principal amounts outstanding. The bridge facility is subject to certain
customary affirmative and negative covenants.
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Agreement to Acquire Cooper

On May 21, 2012, Eaton reached an agreement to acquire Cooper (the "Transaction™). Cooper is incorporated in Ireland and is a diversified global
manufacturer of electrical components and tools with sales of $5.4 billion for 2011. At the close of the Transaction, Eaton and Cooper will be combined under
ECL. The total consideration to be received by Cooper shareholders in the Transaction is comprised of both cash and equity and has a value of approximately
$12.9 billion based on the closing share price of Eaton common stock of $50.49 on November 5, 2012. Based on the terms of the Transaction agreement, the
purchase consideration entitles the holder of each ordinary share of Cooper to receive from ECL $39.15 and 0.77479 of an ECL ordinary share. At the close of
the Transaction, the former shareholders of Eaton and Cooper are expected to own approximately 73% and 27% of ECL, respectively. The Transaction was
approved by shareholders of both companies on October 26, 2012, and is subject to receipt of certain regulatory approvals and other customary conditions. The
Transaction is expected to close in the fourth quarter of 2012.

Sources and Uses of Cash Flow
Operating Cash Flow

Net cash used in operating activities was $7,690 in the period from May 10, 2012 (date of incorporation) to September 30, 2012. Operating cash flows in
2012 were impacted primarily by a net loss of $7,757 primarily due to corporate organization costs and deferred costs of $4,753,075 for the future issuance of
Ordinary Shares, which were entirely offset by proceeds of $4,753,075 from a payable to Eaton. For additional information on the sale of Ordinary Shares and
related payable, refer to Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Financing Cash Flow

Net cash provided by financing activities was $30,763 in the period from May 10, 2012 (date of incorporation) to September 30, 2012. Financing cash
flows in 2012 were impacted primarily by $30,761 proceeds from a loan payable to Matsack. For additional information on the loan payable to Matsack, refer
to Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Form 10-Q Report contains forward-looking statements concerning the acquisition of Cooper, ECL's liquidity, performance in 2012 of ECL's
worldwide end markets and other matters. These statements may discuss goals, intentions and expectations as to future trends, plans, events, results of
operations or financial condition, or state other information relating to ECL, based on current beliefs of management as well as assumptions made by, and
information currently available to, management. Forward-looking statements generally will be accompanied by words such as “anticipate,” “believe,” “could,”
“estimate,” “expect,” “forecast,” “guidance,” “intend,” “may,” “possible,” “potential,” “predict,” “project” or other similar words, phrases or expressions.
These statements should be used with caution and are subject to various risks and uncertainties, many of which are outside ECL's control. The following
factors could cause actual results to differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements: unanticipated delays in closing of, or failure to close, the
Cooper acquisition; unanticipated difficulties integrating acquisitions, including, specifically, the Cooper acquisition; new laws and governmental regulations;
interest rate changes; tax rate changes or exposure to additional income tax liability currency fluctuations; and unanticipated deterioration of economic and
financial conditions in the United States and around the world. ECL does not assume any obligation to update these forward-looking statements.

” L] LT LT LT LT LT

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.

Pursuant to Rule 13a-15 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the Exchange Act), an evaluation was performed, under the supervision and with the
participation of ECL’s management, including Alexander M. Cutler - Chief Executive Officer and President; and Richard H. Fearon - Chief Financial and
Planning Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of ECL’s disclosure controls and procedures. Based on that evaluation, management
concluded that ECL’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of September 30, 2012.

Disclosure controls and procedures are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in ECL’s reports filed or submitted under the Exchange
Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms.
Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in ECL’s
reports filed under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to management, including ECL’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer,
to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.
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PART Il —OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1A. RISKFACTORS.
Among the risks that could materially adversely affect ECL's businesses, financial condition or results of operations are the following:

Failure to consummate the acquisition of Cooper by Eaton (the transaction) could negatively impact the share price and the future business and
financial results of ECL.

If the transaction is not consummated, ECL will have no operating assets, and the majority of its non-operating assets will become impaired. Under such
circumstances, ECL will be insolvent.

If the transaction is completed, ECL may not realize all of the anticipated benefits or those benefits may take longer to realize than expected. Further,
ECL's post-transaction leverage and debt service obligations could adversely affect ECL's business.

ECL's ability to realize the anticipated benefits of the transaction will depend, to a large extent, on ECL's ability to integrate the two businesses. The
integration process may disrupt the businesses and, if implemented ineffectively, would preclude realization of the full benefits expected. Failure to meet
the challenges involved in integrating the two businesses to realize the anticipated benefits of the transaction could cause an interruption of, or a loss of
momentum in, the activities of ECL and could adversely affect ECL's results of operations. The difficulties of combining the operations of the companies
include, among others:

« the diversion of management's attention to integration matters;

« difficulties in achieving anticipated cost savings, synergies, business opportunities and growth prospects from combining the business of Cooper with
that of Eaton;

« difficulties in the integration of operations and systems;

« difficulties in the assimilation of employees;

« difficulties in managing the expanded operations of a significantly larger and more complex company;
« challenges in keeping existing customers and obtaining new customers; and

« challenges in attracting and retaining key personnel.

Many of these factors will be outside of ECL's control and any one of them could result in increased costs, decreases in the amount of expected revenues
and diversion of management's time and energy, which could materially impact the business, financial condition and results of operations of ECL. Further,
ECL intends to incur new term debt in excess of $5 billion to pay the cash portion of the transaction purchase price. The degree to which ECL will be
leveraged following the transaction could have important consequences to shareholders.

Upon consummation of the transaction, among the risks that could materially adversely affect ECL's businesses, financial condition or results of operations are
the following:

Volatility of end markets that Eaton and Cooper (combined, the **Companies') serve.

The Companies' segment revenues, operating results and profitability have varied in the past and may vary from quarter to quarter in the future. Profitability
can be negatively impacted by volatility in the end markets that the Companies serve. The Companies have undertaken measures to reduce the impact of
this volatility through diversification of the markets they serve and expansion of geographic regions in which they operate. Future downturns in any of the
markets could adversely affect revenues, operating results and profitability.

Eaton and Cooper’s operating results depend in part on continued successful research, development and marketing of new and/or improved products
and services, and there can be no assurance that the Companies will continue to successfully introduce new products and services.

The success of new and improved products and services depends on their initial and continued acceptance by the Companies' customers. The Companies'
businesses are affected, to varying degrees, by technological change and corresponding shifts in customer demand, which could result in unpredictable
product transitions or shortened life cycles. Eaton or Cooper may experience difficulties or delays in the research, development, production or marketing of
new products and services which may prevent the Companies from recouping or realizing a return on the investments required to bring new products and
services to market.
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Eaton's and Cooper’s ability to attract, develop and retain executives and other qualified employees is crucial to the Company's results of operations
and future growth.

The Companies depend on the continued services and performance of key executives, senior management and skilled personnel, particularly professionals
with experience in the Companies' industries and businesses. ECL cannot be certain that any of these individuals will continue to be employed. A lengthy
period of time is required to hire and develop replacement personnel when skilled personnel depart either Eaton or Cooper. An inability to hire, develop and
retain a sufficient number of qualified employees could materially hinder the business by, for example, delaying Eaton's or Cooper's ability to bring new
products to market or impairing the success of the Companies' operations.

Eaton's and Cooper's operations depend on production facilities throughout the world, many of which are located outside the United States and are
subject to greater risks of disrupted production.

The Companies manage businesses with manufacturing facilities worldwide. In the last five years, operations outside the United States have increased
significantly in relative size in comparison to their total operations. The Companies' manufacturing facilities and operations could be disrupted by a natural
disaster, labor strike, war, political unrest, terrorist activity or public health concerns. Some of Eaton's and Cooper's non-United States manufacturing
facilities also may be more susceptible to economic and political upheaval than United States facilities. Any such disruption could cause delays in
shipments of products and the loss of sales and customers, and insurance proceeds may not adequately compensate for losses.

If Eaton or Cooper is unable to protect its information technology infrastructure against service interruptions, data corruption, cyber-based attacks or
network security breaches, operations could be disrupted or data confidentiality lost.

Eaton and Cooper rely on information technology networks and systems, including the Internet, to process, transmit and store electronic information, and to
manage or support a variety of business processes and activities, including procurement, manufacturing, distribution, invoicing and collection. These
technology networks and systems may be susceptible to damage, disruptions or shutdowns due to failures during the process of upgrading or replacing
software, databases or components, power outages, hardware failures, or computer viruses. In addition, security breaches could result in unauthorized
disclosure of confidential information. If these information technology systems suffer severe damage, disruption or shutdown and business continuity plans
do not effectively resolve the issues in a timely manner, there could be a negative impact on operating results of the Companies, or ECL or either of the
Companies may suffer financial or reputational damage.

Operations and supply sources located outside the United States, particularly emerging markets, are subject to increased risks.

The Companies' operating activities outside the United States contribute significantly to revenues and earnings. Serving a global customer base and
remaining competitive in the global market place requires that we place more production in countries other than the United States, including emerging
markets, to capitalize on market opportunities and maintain a cost-efficient structure. In addition, we source a significant amount of raw materials and other
components from third-party suppliers or majority-owned joint-venture operations in low-cost countries. The Companies' operations outside the United
States could be disrupted by a natural disaster, labor strike, war, political unrest, terrorist activity or public health concerns. Operations outside the United
States are also subject to certain regulatory and economic uncertainties including trade barriers and restrictions on the exchange and fluctuations of
currency. We believe that our operations in certain emerging markets such as China, India and in the Middle East are subject to greater risks related to these
political and economic uncertainties as compared to most countries where the Companies have operations.

Eaton and Cooper use a variety of raw materials and components in their businesses, and significant shortages, price increases, or supplier insolvencies
could increase operating costs and adversely impact the competitive positions of ECL's products.

Significant shortages could affect the prices Eaton's and Cooper's businesses are charged and the competitive position of their products and services, all of
which could adversely affect operating results.

Further, Eaton's and Cooper's suppliers of component parts may increase their prices in response to increases in costs of raw materials that they use to
manufacture component parts. As a result, the Companies may not be able to increase prices commensurately with increased costs. Consequently, operating
results could be materially and adversely affected.

Finally, while Eaton and Cooper each carefully monitor the viability of each of its suppliers, the recent global economic downturn has had an adverse
impact on suppliers' liquidity and solvency. Should one or more material suppliers become insolvent, Eaton or Cooper could be required to pay increased
prices for affected raw materials or components, or experience difficulty in replacing the insolvent supplier, either of which could adversely affect operating
results.
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Eaton or Cooper may be unable to adequately protect their intellectual property rights, which could affect the Companies" ability to compete.

Protecting Eaton's and Cooper's intellectual property rights is critical to their ability to compete and succeed. The Companies own a large number of United
States and foreign patents and patent applications, as well as trademark and copyright registrations that are necessary, and contribute significantly, to the
preservation of Eaton's and Cooper's competitive positions in various markets. Although management believes that the loss or expiration of any single
intellectual property right would not have a material effect on the results of operations or financial position of Eaton or Cooper or their respective business
segments, there can be no assurance that any one, or more, of these patents and other intellectual property will not be challenged, invalidated or
circumvented by third parties. Eaton and Cooper enter into confidentiality and invention assignment agreements with the employees, and into non-
disclosure agreements with suppliers and appropriate customers so as to limit access to and disclosure of proprietary information. These measures may not
suffice to deter misappropriation or independent third party development of similar technologies. Moreover, the protection provided to Eaton's and Cooper's
intellectual property by the laws and courts of foreign nations may not be as advantageous as remedies available under United States law.

Eaton and Cooper ares subject to litigation and environmental regulations that could adversely impact their businesses.

At any given time, Eaton or Cooper may be subject to litigation, the disposition of which may have a material adverse effect on that company's business,
financial condition or results of operations.

Eaton and Cooper participate in markets that are competitive and ECL"s results could be adversely impacted by competitors' actions.

Eaton's and Cooper's businesses operate in competitive markets. They compete against other global manufacturers and service providers on the basis of
product performance, quality and price, in addition to other factors. While Eaton's and Cooper's product development and quality initiatives have been
competitive strengths in the past, actions by competitors could lead to downward pressure on prices and/or a decline in the market share, either of which
could adversely affect operating results.

ITEM6. EXHIBITS.
Exhibits — See Exhibit Index attached.

12



Table of Contents

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf
by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

EATON CORPORATION LIMITED
Registrant

Date: November 14, 2012 By: /s/ Richard H. Fearon
Richard H. Fearon
Chief Financial and Planning Officer
(On behalf of the Registrant and as Principal Financial Officer)
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Eaton Corporation Limited
Third Quarter 2012 Report on Form 10-Q
Exhibit Index

Transaction Agreement and Amendment No. 1 to the Transaction Agreement - Incorporated by reference to the Form S-4, Annex A, filed on
June 22, 2012

Amendment No. 2 to the Transaction Agreement - Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of the Eaton Corporation Form 8-K Report filed on
October 19, 2012

Amended Memorandum and Articles of Association — Filed in conjunction with this Form 10-Q Report *
Material contracts

(aa) Senior Unsecured Bridge Credit Agreement - Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Eaton Corporation Form 8-K Report filed
on May 24, 2012

Certification of Chief Executive Officer (Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)) — Filed in conjunction with this Form 10-Q Report *
Certification of Chief Financial Officer (Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)) — Filed in conjunction with this Form 10-Q Report *

Certification of Chief Executive Officer (Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act) — Filed
in conjunction with this Form 10-Q Report *

Certification of Chief Financial Officer (Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act) — Filed in
conjunction with this Form 10-Q Report *

XBRL Instance Document *

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document *

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document *
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Definition Document *
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document *

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document *

*

Submitted electronically herewith.

Attached as Exhibit 101 to this report are the following formatted in XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language): (i) Consolidated Statements of
Income for the three months ended September 30, 2012, (ii) Consolidated Statements of Income for the period from May 10, 2012 (date of incorporation) to
September 30, 2012, (iii) Consolidated Balance Sheet at September 30, 2012, (iv) Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the period from May 10, 2012
(date of incorporation) to September 30, 2012, and (v) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the period from May 10, 2012 (date of incorporation) to
September 30, 2012.

In accordance with Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, the XBRL related information in Exhibit 101 to this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q shall not be deemed
to be “filed” for purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act, or otherwise subject to the liability of that section, and shall not be part of any registration
statement or other document filed under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act, except as shall be expressly set forth by specific reference in such filing.
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2.1

22

2.3

24
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2.6

2.7

COMPANIES ACTS, 1963 to 2012
COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES
MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION
OF
EATON CORPORATION LIMITED

(As amended pursuant to Special Resolution passed on 9 November 2012)

The name of the Company is Eaton Corporation Limited.
The objects for which the Company is established are:
To carry on the business and activities associated with a holding company.

To carry on all or any of the businesses as aforesaid either as a separate business or as the principal business of the Company and to
carry on any other business (whether manufacturing or otherwise) (except the issuing of policies of insurance) which may seem to the
Company capable of being conveniently carried on in connection with the above objects or calculated directly or indirectly to enhance
the value of or render more profitable any of the Company’s property.

To purchase, take on lease or in exchange or otherwise acquire real and chattel real property of all kinds and in particular lands,
tenements and hereditaments of any tenure whether subject or not to any charges or incumbrances, and to hold or to sell, develop, let,
alienate, mortgage, charge, or otherwise deal with all or any of such lands, tenements or hereditaments for such consideration and on
such terms as may be considered expedient.

To improve, manage, cultivate, develop, exchange, let on lease or otherwise, mortgage, charge, sell, dispose of, turn to account, grant
rights and privileges in respect of, or otherwise deal with all or any part of the property and rights of the Company.

To acquire and hold shares and stocks of any class or description, debentures, debenture stock, bonds, bills, mortgages, obligations,
investments and securities of all descriptions and of any kind issued or guaranteed by any company, corporation of undertaking of
whatever nature and wheresoever constituted or carrying on business or issued or guaranteed by any government, state, dominion,
colony, sovereign ruler, commissioners, trust, public, municipal, local or other authority or body of whatsoever nature and wheresoever
situated and investments, securities and property of all descriptions and of any kind, including real and chattel real estates, mortgages,
reversions, contingencies and choses in action.

To invest any monies of the Company in such investments and in such manner as may from time to time be determined, and to hold, sell
or deal with such investments and generally to purchase, take on lease or in exchange or otherwise acquire any real and personal
property and rights or privileges.

To purchase or otherwise acquire and undertake, the whole or any part of the business, goodwill, property, assets and liabilities of any
person firm or company, or to acquire an interest in, amalgamate with, or enter into partnership or into any arrangement for sharing
profits, union of interests, or for co-operation, joint venture or for mutual assistance or reciprocal concession with any such person,



2.8

29

2.10

2.1

2.12

2.13

firm or company, and to give or accept by way of consideration for any of the acts or things aforesaid or property acquired, any shares,
debentures, debenture stock or securities that may be agreed upon, and to hold and retain or sell, mortgage and deal with any shares,
debentures, debenture stock or securities so received.

To sell or otherwise dispose of the whole or any part of the business, undertaking, property or investments of the Company, either
together or in portions for such consideration and on such terms as may be considered expedient.

To pay for any property, assets or rights acquired by the Company, and to discharge or satisfy any debt, obligation or liability of the
Company, either in cash or in shares with or without preferred or deferred rights in respect of dividend or repayment of capital or
otherwise, or by any other securities which the Company has power to issue, or partly in one way and partly in another, and generally on
such terms as may be considered expedient.

To accept payment for any property, assets or rights disposed of or dealt with or for any services rendered by the Company, or in
discharge or satisfaction of any debt, obligation or liability to the Company, either in cash or in shares, with or without deferred or
preferred rights in respect of dividend or repayment of capital or otherwise, or in any other securities, or partly in one way and partly in
another, and generally on such terms as may be considered expedient.

To advance, deposit or lend money, securities and property to or with such persons and on such terms as may seem expedient.

To borrow or raise money in any such manner and on such terms and for such purposes as the Company shall think fit, whether alone
or jointly and / or severally with any person or persons, including, without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, by the issue of
debentures or debenture stock (perpetual or otherwise), and to secure, with or without consideration, the payment or repayment of any
money borrowed, raised, or owing or any debt, obligation or liability of the Company or of any person whatsoever in such manner and on
such terms as the Company shall think fit, and in particular by mortgage, charge, lien or debenture or any other security of whatsoever
nature or howsoever described, perpetual or otherwise, charged upon all or any of the Company’s property, undertaking, rights or assets
of any description, both present and future, including its uncalled capital, and to purchase, redeem or pay off any such securities.

To receive money on loan upon such terms as the Company may approve and to guarantee, enter into any suretyship or joint obligation,
grant indemnities in respect of, support or secure, whether by personal covenant or by mortgaging or charging all or any part of the
undertaking, property and assets (present and future) and uncalled capital of the Company, or by both such methods and whether in
support of such guarantee or indemnity or suretyship or joint obligation or otherwise, the payment of any debts or the performance of
any contract or obligation of any company or association or undertaking or of any person (including, without prejudice to the generality of
the foregoing, the payment of any capital, principal, dividends or interest on any stocks, shares, debentures, debenture stock, notes,
bonds or other securities of any person, authority (whether supreme, local, municipal or otherwise) or company) including (without
prejudice to the generality of the foregoing) any company which is for the time being the Company’s holding company (as defined in
section 155 of the Companies Act 1963 or any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof,) or another subsidiary (as defined by
Section 155 of the Companies Act 1963) of the Company’s holding company or a subsidiary of the Company or otherwise associated
with the Company in business notwithstanding the fact that the Company may not receive any consideration, advantage or benefit, direct
or indirect,



2.14

2.15

2.16

217

2.18

2.19

2.20

2.21

2.22

from entering into such guarantee or indemnity or suretyship or joint obligation or other arrangement or transaction contemplated herein.

As an object of the Company and as a pursuit in itself or otherwise and whether for the purpose of making a profit or avoiding a loss or
managing a current or interest rate exposure or any other exposure or for any other purpose whatsoever, to engage in currency
exchange, interest rate and commodity transactions, derivative transactions and any other financial or other transactions of whatever
nature in any manner and on any terms and for any purposes whatsoever, including, without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing,
any transaction for the purpose of, or capable of being for the purposes of, avoiding, reducing, minimising, hedging against or otherwise
managing the risk of any loss, cost, expense, or liability arising, or which may arise, directly or indirectly, from a change or changes in
any interest rate or currency exchange rate or in the price or value of any property, asset, commodity, index or liability or from any other
risk or factor affecting the Company’s business, including but not limited to dealings whether involving purchases, sales or otherwise in
foreign currency, spot and / or forward rate exchange contracts, futures, options, forward rate agreements, swaps, caps, floors, collars
and any such other foreign exchange or interest rate or commodity or other hedging arrangements and such other instruments as are
similar to, or derived from, any of the foregoing.

To the extent that the same is permitted by law, to give financial assistance for the purpose of or in connection with a purchase or
subscription of or for shares in the Company or the Company’s holding company for the time being (as defined by section 155 of the
Companies Act 1963) and to give such assistance by any means howsoever permitted by law.

To redeem, purchase or otherwise acquire in any manner permitted by law and on such terms and in such manner as the Company may
think fit any shares in the Company’s capital.

To apply for, purchase or otherwise acquire and hold, use, develop, protect, sell, licence or otherwise dispose of, or deal with patents,
brevets d’invention, copyrights, designs, trade marks, secret processes, know-how and inventions and any interest therein.

To form, promote, finance or assist any other company or association, whether for the purpose of acquiring all or any of the undertaking,
property and assets of the Company or for any other purpose which may be considered expedient.

To facilitate and encourage the creation, issue or conversion of and to offer for public subscription debentures, debenture stocks, bonds,
obligations, shares, stocks, and securities and to act as trustees in connection with any such securities and to take part in the conversion
of business concerns and undertakings into companies.

To draw, make, accept, endorse, discount, negotiate, and issue bills of exchange, promissory notes, bills of lading and other negotiable
or transferable instruments.

To act as managers, consultants, supervisors and agents of other companies or undertakings and to provide for such other companies
or undertakings, management, advisory, technical, purchasing, selling and other services, and to enter into such contracts and
agreements as are necessary or advisable in connection with the foregoing.

To establish, regulate and discontinue franchises, agencies and branches, appoint agents and others to assist in the conduct or
extension of the Company’s business and to undertake and transact all kinds of trust, agency and franchise business which an ordinary
individual may legally undertake.
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2.24

2.25

2.26

2.27

2.28

2.29

2.30

2.31

To make gifts or grant bonuses to the directors or any other persons who are or have been in the employment of the Company including
substitute and alternate directors.

To make such provision for the education and training of employees and prospective employees of the Company and others as may
seem to the Company to be advantageous to or calculated, whether directly or indirectly, to advance the interests of the Company or
any member thereof.

To provide for the welfare of persons in the employment of or holding office under or formerly in the employment of or holding office
under the Company or directors or ex-directors of the Company and the wives, widows and families dependents or connections of such
persons by grants of money, pensions or other payments and by forming and contributing to pension, provident or benefit funds or profit
sharing or co-partnership schemes for the benefit of such persons and to form, subscribe to or otherwise aid charitable, benevolent,
religious, scientific, national or other institutions, exhibitions or objects which shall have any moral or other claims to support or aid by
the Company by reason of the locality of its operation or otherwise.

To insure the life of any person who may, in the opinion of the Company, be of value to the Company, as having or holding for the
Company interests, goodwill or influence or otherwise and to pay the premiums on such insurance.

To undertake and execute the office of nominees for the purpose of holding and dealing with any real or personal property or security of
any kind for or on behalf of any government, local authority, mortgagee, company, person or body; to act as nominee or agent generally
for any purpose and either solely or jointly with another or others for any person, company, corporation, government, state or province,
or for any municipal or other authority or local body; to undertake and execute the office of trustee, executor, administrator, registrar,
secretary, committee or attorney; to undertake the management of any business or undertaking or transaction, and generally to
undertake, perform and fulfil any trust or agency business of any kind and any office of trust or confidence.

To constitute any trusts with a view to the issue of preferred and deferred or other special stocks or securities based on or representing
any shares, stocks and other assets specifically appropriated for the purpose of any such trust and to settle and regulate and if thought
fit to undertake and execute any such trusts and to issue, dispose of or hold any such preferred, deferred or other special stocks or
securities.

To establish, on and subject to such terms as may be considered expedient, a scheme or schemes for or in relation to the purchase of,
or subscription for, any fully or partly paid shares in the capital of the Company by, or by trustees for, or otherwise for the benefit of,
employees of the Company or of its subsidiary or associated companies.

To vest any real or personal property, rights or interest acquired by or belonging to the Company in any person or company on behalf of
or for the benefit of the Company, and with or without any declared trust in favour of the Company.

To enter into any arrangements with any governments or authorities (supreme, municipal, local or otherwise), or any corporations,
companies or persons that may seem conducive to the attainment of the Company’s objects, or any of them and to obtain from any such
government, authority, corporation, company, or person any charters, contracts, decrees, rights, privileges and concessions, including
grant aid, which the Company may think desirable, and to carry out, exercise and comply with any such charters, contracts, decrees,
rights, privileges, concessions and grant agreements.
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2.33

2.34

2.35

2.36

2.37

2.38

To apply for, promote and obtain any Act of the Oireachtas, provisional order or licence of the Minister for Enterprise, Trade &
Employment or other authority for enabling the Company to carry any of its objects into effect, or for effecting any modification of the
Company’s constitution, or for any other purpose which may seem expedient, and to oppose any proceedings or applications which may
seem calculated, directly or indirectly, to prejudice the Company’s interests.

To pay all costs, charges and expenses incurred or sustained in or about the promotion and establishment of the Company or which the
Company shall consider to be preliminary thereto and to issue as fully or in part paid up, and to pay out of the funds of the Company all
brokerage and charges incidental thereto.

To remunerate, by cash payment or allotment of shares or securities of the Company credited as fully paid up or otherwise, any person
or company for services rendered or to be rendered to the Company whether in the conduct or management of its business, or in placing
or assisting to place or guaranteeing the placing of any of the shares of the Company’s capital, or any debentures or other securities of
the Company or in or about the formation or promotion of the Company.

To distribute in specie or otherwise as may be resolved, any assets of the Company among its members and in particular the shares,
debentures, or other securities of any other company belonging to the Company or of which the Company may have the power of
disposing.

To procure the Company to be registered in any part of the world.

To transact or carry on any other business which may seem to the Company capable of being conveniently carried on in connection with
any of these objects or calculated directly or indirectly to enhance the value of or facilitate the realisation of or render profitable any of
the Company’s property or rights.

To do all or any of the above things in any part of the world, either alone or in conjunction with others and either as principals, agents,
contractors, factors, trustees or otherwise and either by or through agents, contractors, factors, trustees or otherwise.

The word “company” in this clause except where used in reference to this Company, where the context so admits, shall be deemed to
include any partnership or other body of persons whether incorporated or not incorporated or whether domiciled or registered in Ireland,
the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland or elsewhere and the intention is that in the construction of this clause the
objects set forth in each of the foregoing sub-paragraphs shall, except where otherwise expressed in the same paragraph, be regarded
as independent objects and accordingly shall in no way be limited or restricted by reference to or inference from the terms of any other
sub-clause or the name of the Company, but may be carried out in as full and ample a manner and construed in as wide a sense as if
each defined the objects of a separate and distinct Company.

Provided always that the provisions of this clause shall be subject to the Company obtaining, where necessary for the purpose of
carrying any of its objects into effect, such licence, permit or authority as may be required by law.

The liability of the Members is limited.

The Share Capital of the Company is US$7,610,000 and EUR 40,000 divided into 750,000,000 Ordinary Shares of US$0.01, 10,000 A
Preferred Shares of US$1.00 each, 10,000,000 Serial Preferred Shares of $0.01 each and 40,000 Deferred Ordinary Shares of EUR
1.00 each.



We, the several persons whose names, addresses and descriptions are subscribed, wish to be formed into a company in pursuance of this
memorandum of association, and we agree to take the number of shares in the capital of the company set opposite our respective names.

Names, addresses and descriptions of subscribers Number of shares taken by each subscriber

One

PATRICK SPICER

For and on behalf of

MATSACK NOMINEES LIMITED
70 Sir John Rogerson’s Quay
Dublin 2

Body Corporate

Total shares taken One

Dated the 4th day of May 2012

Witness to the above signature:

Name: Sean Forde
Address: 70 Sir John Rogerson’s Quay, Dublin 2
Occupation: Company Secretary
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1. INTERPRETATION
1.1 The regulations in Table A in the First Schedule of the Companies Act 1963 do not apply to the Company.
1.2 In these Atrticles:

the “1983 Act” means the Companies (Amendment) Act 1983;

the “1990 Act” means the Companies Act 1990;

“A Preferred Shares” the A preferred shares of nominal value US$1.00 per share (or such other nominal value as may result from any
reorganisation of capital) in the capital of the Company, having the rights and being subject to the limitations set out in these articles;

the “Act” means the Companies Act 1963 and every statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force;
the “Acts” means the Companies Acts 1963 to 2012;

“Adoption Date” means the date of adoption of these Atrticles;

“Articles” means these articles of association, as amended from time to time;

“Auditors” means the auditors of the Company from time to time;

“Clear Days” in relation to the period of a notice means that period excluding the day when the notice is given or deemed to be given
and the day for which it is given or on which it is to take effect;

“Company” means Eaton Corporation Limited;
“Companies Acts” means the Companies Acts 1963 to 2012;
“Deferred Ordinary Shares” means the deferred ordinary shares of EUR 1.00 each in the capital of the Company;

“Director” means a director of the Company and the “Directors” means the Directors or any of them acting as the board of Directors of
the Company;

“dividend” means dividend or bonus;

the “holder” in relation to shares means the member whose name is entered in the register of members as the holder of the shares;
“Office” means the registered office of the Company;

“Ordinary Shares” means the ordinary shares of US$0.01 each in the capital of the Company;

“paid” means paid or credited as paid;
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“‘Redeemable Shares” mean redeemable shares in accordance with section 206 of the Companies Act 1990;

“seal” means the common seal of the Company and includes any official seal kept by the Company by virtue of Section 41 of the Act;

“Secretary” means the secretary of the Company or any other person appointed to perform the duties of the secretary of the Company,
including a joint, assistant or deputy secretary;

“Serial Preferred Shares” means the serial preferred shares of nominal value $0.01 per share (or such other nominal value as may
result from any reorganisation of capital) in the capital of the Company, having the rights and being subject to the limitations set out in
these articles.

1.3 In these Articles:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

(9

Words denoting the singular number include the plural number and vice versa, words denoting a gender include each gender
and words denoting persons include corporations;

Words or expressions contained in these Articles which are not defined in these Articles but are defined in the Acts have the
same meaning as in the Acts (but excluding any modification of the Acts not in force at the date of adoption of these Atrticles)
unless inconsistent with the subject or context;

any reference to any statute, statutory provision or to any order or regulation shall be construed as a reference to the statute,
provision, order or regulation as extended, modified, amended, replaced or re-enacted from time to time (whether before or after
the date of adoption of these Articles) and all statutory instruments, regulations and orders from time to time made thereunder or
deriving validity therefrom (whether before or after the date of adoption of these Articles);

headings are inserted for convenience only and do not affect the construction of these Articles;

any reference to a “person” shall be construed as a reference to any individual, firm, company, corporation, undertaking,
government, state or agency of a state or any association or partnership (whether or not having separately good personality);

powers of delegation shall not be restrictively construed but the widest interpretation shall be given to them and except where
expressly provided by the terms of delegation, the delegation of a power shall not exclude the concurrent exercise of that power
by any other body or person who is for the time being authorised to exercise it under these Articles or under another delegation
of the power; and

references to “writing” mean the representation or reproduction of words, symbols or other information in a visible form by any
method or combination of methods, and “written” shall be construed accordingly.

2. PRIVATE COMPANY

The Company is a private company within the meaning of the Acts and accordingly:
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4.1

4.2

4.3

5.1

(a) the right to transfer shares is restricted in the manner hereinafter prescribed;

(b) the number of members of the Company (exclusive of persons who are in the employment of the Company and of persons who,
having been formerly in the employment of the Company, were, while in that employment, and have continued after the
termination of that employment to be, members of the Company) is limited to ninety-nine, so, however, that where two or more
persons hold one or more shares in the Company jointly, they shall, for the purpose of this article, be treated as a single
member;

(c) any invitation to the public to subscribe for any shares, debentures or other securities of the Company is prohibited; and
(d) the Company shall not have power to issue share warrants to bearer.
SINGLE MEMBER

If at any time and for so long as the Company has a single member, all the provisions of the European Communities (Single-Member
Private Limited Companies) Regulations 1994 shall (in the absence of any express provision to the contrary) apply to the Company with
such modification as may be necessary in relation to a company with a single member.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Share Capital of the Company is US$7,610,000 and EUR 40,000 divided into 750,000,000 Ordinary Shares of US$0.01, 10,000 A
Preferred Shares of US$1.00 each, 10,000,000 Serial Preferred Shares of $0.01 each and 40,000 Deferred Ordinary Shares of EUR
1.00 each.

Subject to the provisions of the Acts and without prejudice to any rights attached to any existing shares, any share may be issued with
such preferred, deferred or other special rights or restrictions, whether in regard to dividend, voting, return of capital or otherwise, as the
Company may from time to time by special resolution determine.

Subject to the provisions of the Acts shares may be issued which are to be redeemed or are to be liable to be redeemed at the option of
the Company or the holder on such terms and in such manner as may be provided by the Articles. Subject as aforesaid, the Company
may cancel any shares if so redeemed or may hold them as treasury shares and re-issue any such treasury shares as share of any class
or classes.

ORDINARY SHARES

The holder of an Ordinary Share shall be:

(a) entitled to dividends on a pro rata basis in accordance with the relevant provisions of these Articles;
(b) entitled to participate pro rata in the total assets of the Company in the event of the Company's winding up; and
(c) entitled, subject to the right of the Company to set record dates for the purpose of determining the identity of members entitled

to notice of and / or vote at a general
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5.2

5.3

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

meeting to attend general meetings of the Company and shall be entitled to one vote for each Ordinary Share registered in her
name in the register of members of the Company, both in accordance with the relevant provisions of these Articles.

An Ordinary Share shall be deemed to be a Redeemable Share on, and from the time of, the existence or creation of an agreement,
transaction or trade between the Company (including any agent or broker acting on behalf of the Company) and any third party pursuant
to which the Company acquires or will acquire ordinary shares, or an interest in ordinary shares, from the relevant third party. In these
circumstances, the acquisition of such shares by the Company shall constitute the redemption of a Redeemable Share in accordance
with Part XI of the 1990 Act.

All Ordinary Shares shall rank pari passu with each other in all respects.
DEFERRED ORDINARY SHARES

The holders of the Deferred Ordinary Shares shall not be entitled to receive any dividend or distribution and shall not be entitled to
receive notice of, nor to attend, speak or vote at any general meeting of the Company. On a return of assets, whether on liquidation or
otherwise, the Deferred Ordinary Shares shall entitle the holder thereof only to the repayment of the amounts paid up on such shares
after repayment of the capital paid up on the Ordinary Shares plus the payment of US$5,000,000 on each of the Ordinary Shares and
the holders of the Deferred Ordinary Shares (as such) shall not be entitled to any further participation in the assets or profits of the
Company.

The special resolution passed on the Adoption Date adopting these Articles shall be deemed to confer irrevocable authority on the
Company at any time after the Adoption Date:

(a) to acquire all or any of the fully paid Deferred Ordinary Shares otherwise than for valuable consideration in accordance with
section 41(2) of the 1983 Act and without obtaining the sanction of the holders thereof;

(b) to appoint any person to execute on behalf of the holders of the Deferred Ordinary Shares remaining in issue (if any) a transfer
thereof and / or an agreement to transfer the same otherwise than for valuable consideration to the Company or to such other
person as the Company may nominate;

(c) to cancel any acquired Deferred Ordinary Shares; and

(d) pending such acquisition and / or transfer and / or cancellation to retain the certificate (if any) for such Deferred Ordinary Shares.

In accordance with the Companies Acts, the Company may cancel such shares and may reduce the amount of the share capital by the

nominal value of the shares so cancelled and the Directors may take such steps as are requisite to enable the Company to carry out its

obligations, insofar as may be permitted under the Companies Acts, in this regard.

The following provisions shall apply in relation to the redemption by the Company of the Deferred Ordinary Shares:
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6.5

(a) The Company may subject to the provisions of the Companies Acts and subject to the following provisions of this Article redeem
all or any of the Deferred Ordinary Shares at any time prior to 1 January 2025;

(b) The amount payable on any redemption or purchase of Deferred Ordinary Shares effected pursuant to the provisions of this
Article shall be a total of €1.00 for all Deferred Ordinary Shares redeemed by the Company at any time;

(c) The Company shall give the holders of the Deferred Ordinary Shares to be redeemed not less than 30 days' prior written notice
of the date fixed for redemption. Any such notice, and any written communication between the Company and the holder of the
Deferred Ordinary Shares specifying a date for redemption, shall specify the place at which the certificate(s) of such Deferred
Ordinary Shares are to be presented for redemption, and upon such date each of the holders of the Deferred Ordinary Shares
concerned shall be bound to deliver to the Company at such place the certificate(s) for those Deferred Ordinary Shares in order
that the same may be cancelled and upon such delivery the Company shall pay to the holder thereof the amount due in respect
of such redemption as hereinbefore provided. If requested the Company shall also issue a balance certificate for the number of
Deferred Ordinary Shares (if any) held by the holder of the Deferred Ordinary Shares; and

(d) Upon the date fixed for redemption, the Deferred Ordinary Shares to be redeemed shall be automatically cancelled irrespective
of whether the holders of the Deferred Ordinary Shares have delivered their share certificate(s) or the amount due to them has
been cancelled.

Neither the acquisition by the Company otherwise than for valuable consideration of all or any of the Deferred Ordinary Shares nor the
redemption thereof nor the cancellation thereof by the Company in accordance with this Article shall constitute a variation or abrogation
of the rights or privileges attached to the Deferred Ordinary Shares, and accordingly the Deferred Ordinary Shares or any of them may
be so acquired, redeemed and cancelled without any such consent or sanction on the part of the holders thereof. The rights conferred
upon the holders of the Deferred Ordinary Shares shall not be deemed to be varied or abrogated by the creation of further shares
ranking in priority thereto or parri passu therewith.

SERIAL PREFERRED SHARES:

Issuance in Series: The Serial Preferred Shares may be issued from time to time in series. All Serial Preferred Shares shall be of equal
rank and shall be identical, except in respect of matters that may be fixed by the Directors as herein provided, and each share of a
particular series shall be identical with all other shares of such series, except that in the case of series on which dividends are cumulative
the dates from which dividends are cumulative may vary to reflect differences in the dates of issue. Subject to the provisions of Articles
7.2 — 7.8 both inclusive, of this Article 7, which provisions shall apply to all Serial Preferred Shares, the Directors are hereby authorised
to cause Serial Preferred Shares to be issued in one or more series, and with respect to each such series and prior to the issuance
thereof, to fix:

(a) the designation of the series, which may be by distinguishing number, letter or title;

(b) the number of shares of the series, which number the Directors may (except where otherwise provided in the creation of the
series) increase or decrease (but not below
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(c)
(d)

(e)
(f)

C)

(h)

(i)

the number of shares thereof then in issue), the shares reclassified from any series to be available for reissuance
in other series;

the dividend rate of the series;

the dates on which dividends, if declared, shall be payable, and in the case of series on which dividends are cumulative the
dates from which dividends shall be cumulative;

the redemption rights and price or prices, if any, for shares of the series;

subject to the Companies Acts, the terms, conditions, and amount of any sinking fund provided for the purchase or redemption of
the shares of the series;

the amounts payable on shares of the series in the event of any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution, or winding up of
the affairs of the Company;

whether the shares of the series shall be convertible into Ordinary Shares or shares of any other series or class, and, if so, the
conversion price or prices and the adjustments thereof, and all other terms and conditions upon which such conversion may be
made; and

restrictions (in addition to those set forth in Article 7.6(g) and Article 7.6(h) of this Article 7 on the issuance of shares of the same
series of or any other class or series.

7.2 Dividend Rights:

(a)

(b)

The holders of Serial Preferred Shares of each series, in preference to the dividend rights of any other class of shares of the
Company shall be entitled to receive out of any funds legally available for distribution and when and as declared by the
Directors, dividends in cash at the rate for such series fixed in accordance with the provisions of Article 7.1, and no more,
payable quarterly on the dates fixed for such series. Such dividends shall be cumulative, in the case of shares of each particular
series, from and after the date or dates fixed with respect to such series.

No dividend for any quarterly dividend period shall be paid upon or declared and reserved for any of the Serial Preferred Shares
for any quarterly dividend period unless:

(i) as to each series of Serial Preferred Shares entitled to cumulative dividends, dividends for all past dividend periods shall
have been paid or shall have been declared and a sum sufficient for the payment thereof set apart; and

(i) as to all series of Serial Preferred Shares, dividends for the current dividend period shall have been paid or have been
declared and a sum sufficient for the payment thereof set apart rateably in accordance with the amounts which would be
payable as dividends on the shares of the respective series for the current dividend period if all dividends for the current
dividend period were declared and paid in full.

(c) No dividend in respect of past dividend periods shall be paid upon or declared and set apart for payment on any of the Serial
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dividends unless there shall or have been declared and set apart for payment on all issued Serial Preferred Shares entitled to
cumulative dividends, dividends for past dividend periods rateably in accordance with the amounts which would be payable on
the shares of the series entitled to cumulative dividends if all dividends due for all past dividend periods were declared and paid
in full.

7.3 Dividends and Acquisition of Shares:

(a)

So long as any Serial Preferred Shares are in issue, no dividend, shall (except a dividend payable in Ordinary Shares or in any
other shares of the Company ranking junior to the Serial Preferred Shares, and/or except for any dividend in respect of the A
Preferred Shares), be paid or declared or any distribution be made, except as aforesaid, on the Ordinary Shares or on any other
shares of the Company, nor shall any Ordinary Shares or (save for the A Preferred Shares) any other shares of the Company be
purchased, redeemed or otherwise acquired by the Company be made (except out of the proceeds of a fresh issue of Ordinary
Shares or any other shares of the Company ranking junior to the Serial Preferred Shares) or any payment into a sinking fund
with respect to any other shares of the company be made;

(i) unless in each case all dividends on the Serial Preferred shares for past quarterly dividend periods and the full dividends
for the current quarterly dividend period shall have been declared and paid or a sum sufficient for payment thereof set
apart; and

(i) unless in each case there shall be no default with respect to the redemption of Serial Preferred Shares of any series

from, and no default with respect to any required payment into, any sinking fund provided for shares of such series in
accordance with the provisions of Article 7.1.

7.4 Redemption:

(a)

(b)
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Subject to the express terms of each series and to the provisions of Article 7.6(g)(iii) and to the provisions of Part Xl of the 1990
Act, the Company (i) may from time to time redeem all or any part of the Serial Preferred Shares of any series at the time in
issue at the option of the Directors at the applicable redemption price for such series fixed in accordance with the provisions of
Article 7.1, or (ii) shall from time to time make redemptions of the Serial Preferred Shares as may be required to fulfil the
requirements of any sinking fund provided for shares of such series at the applicable sinking fund redemption price fixed in
accordance with the provisions of Article 7.1, together in each case with accrued and unpaid dividends to the redemption date.

Notice of every such redemption shall be mailed, by first-class mail, postage prepaid, to the holders of record of the Serial
Preferred Shares to be redeemed at their respective addresses then appearing on the share register of the Company, not less
than 30 days nor more than 60 days prior to the date fixed for such redemption. At any time before or after notice has been given
as above provided, the Company may deposit the aggregate redemption price of the Serial Preferred Shares to be redeemed,
together with accrued and unpaid dividends thereon to the redemption date, with any bank or trust company in Dublin, Ireland,
London, United Kingdom or New York, United States of America, having capital and surplus of more than $5,000,000, named in
such notice, directed to be paid to the respective holders of the



(c)

(d)

Serial Preferred Shares so to be redeemed, in amounts equal to the redemption price of all Serial Preferred Shares so to be
redeemed, together with accrued and unpaid dividends thereon to the redemption date, or surrender of the stock certificate or
certificates held by such holders, and upon the giving of such notice and the making of such deposit such holders shall cease to
be Shareholders with respect to such shares, and after such notice shall have been given and such deposit shall have been
made such holders shall have no interest in or claim against the Company with respect to such shares except only to receive
such money from such bank or trust company, without interest, or the right to exercise, before the redemption date, any
unexpired rights of conversion. In case less than all of the issued shares of Serial Preferred Shares are to be redeemed, the
Company shall select by lot the shares so to be redeemed in such manner as shall be prescribed by the Directors.

If the holders of Serial Preferred Shares which shall have been called for redemption shall not, within six years after such
deposit, have claimed the amount deposited for the redemption thereof, any such bank or trust company shall, upon demand,
pay over to the Company such unclaimed amounts and thereupon such bank or trust company and the Company shall be
relieved of all responsibility in respect thereof and to such holders.

Any Serial Preferred Shares which are redeemed by the Company pursuant to the provisions of this Article 7.4 and any Serial
Preferred Shares which are purchased and delivered in satisfaction of any sinking fund requirements provided for shares of such
series and any Serial Preferred Shares which are converted in accordance with their express terms shall be cancelled and not
reissued. Any Serial Preferred Shares otherwise acquired by the Company shall be restored to the status of authorised and
unissued Serial Preferred Shares without serial designation.

7.5 Rights Upon Liquidation:

(a)

(b)

(c)
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The holders of Serial Preferred Shares of any series shall in case of liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company be
entitled to receive in full out of the assets of the Company, including its capital, before any amount shall be paid or distributed
among the holders of Ordinary Shares or any other shares of the Company with the exception of the A Preferred Shares, the
amounts fixed with respect to shares of such series in accordance with Article 7.1, plus in any such event an amount equal to all
dividends accrued and unpaid thereon to the date of payment of the amount due pursuant to such liquidation, dissolution or
winding up of the Company. In case the net assets of the Company legally available therefore are insufficient to permit the
payment upon all issued Serial Preferred Shares of the full preferential amount to which they are respectively entitled, then such
net assets shall be distributed rateably upon the issued Serial Preferred shares in proportion to the full preferential amount to
which each such share is entitled.

After payment to holders of Serial Preferred Shares of the full preferential amounts as aforesaid, holders of Serial Preferred
Shares as such shall have no right or claim to any of the remaining assets of the Company.

In this Article “dividends accrued and unpaid” on any share means an amount computed by dividing the annual dividend payable
on the share (whether earned, declared, paid or not) by 365 and multiplying the result by the number of days from the



date on which dividends on the share first became cumulative through the date of payment of the amount due or the redemption date, as

(d)

the case may be, and subtracting from the product the sum of dividends paid (without interest) on the share and of dividends
declared on the share for whose payment a sufficient sum has been set aside.

The merger or consolidation of the Company into or with any other company or corporation, or the merger of any other company
or corporation into it, or the sale, lease, or general reorganisation by scheme of arrangement (not being a reorganisation
pursuant to an examinership or liquidation or other insolvency event) or conveyance of all or any part of the property or business
of the Company, shall not be deemed to be a dissolution, liquidation or winding up of the Company for the purposes of this
Article 7.5. No purchase, redemption or retirement of any shares of the Company in any manner authorised or permitted by
these Articles shall be considered a reduction of capital within the meaning of this Article 7.5.

7.6 Voting Rights:

(a)

(b)

(c)
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The holders of Serial Preferred Shares shall be entitled to one vote for each such share upon all matters presented to
Shareholders; and, except as otherwise provided herein or required by law, the holders of Serial Preferred Shares and the
holders of Ordinary Shares shall vote together as one class on all matters.

If, and so often as, the Company shall be in default in the payment of the equivalent of six quarterly dividends (whether or not
consecutive) on any series of Serial Preferred Shares at the time in issue, whether or not earned or declared, the holders of
Serial Preferred Shares of all series voting separately as a class and in addition to all other rights to vote for Directors shall be
entitled to elect, as herein provided, two members of the Directors; provided, however, that the holders of Serial Preferred
Shares shall not have or exercise such special class voting rights except at meetings of the Shareholders for the election of
Directors at which the holders of not less than a majority of the issued Serial Preferred Shares of all series are present in person
or by proxy; and provided further that the special class voting rights provided for herein when the same shall have become
vested shall remain so vested until all dividends on the Serial Preferred Shares of all series then in issue for past quarterly
dividend periods and for the current quarterly dividend period shall have been paid or declared and a sum sufficient for the
payment thereof set apart, whereupon the holders of Serial Preferred Shares shall be divested of their special class voting rights
in respect of subsequent elections of Directors, subject to the re-vesting of such special class voting rights in the event
hereinabove specified in this Article 7.6(b).

At any time after such voting power shall have been so vested in the holders of the Serial Preferred Shares, the Secretary may,
and, upon the written request of the holders of record of 10% or more of the Serial Preferred Shares then in issue, addressed to
him at the Registered Office, shall call a extraordinary general meeting of the holders of the Series Preferred Shares for the
election of the Directors to be elected by them as herein provided to be held within 30 days after such call and at the place and
upon the notice provided by law and in the Companies Acts for the holding of meetings of Shareholders; provided, however, that
the Secretary shall not be required to call such extraordinary general meeting in the case of any such request



(d)

(e)

(f)

()]
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received less than 90 days before the date fixed for any annual general meeting of Shareholders.

If any such extraordinary general meeting required to be called as provided shall not be called by the Secretary with the 30 days
after the receipt of any such request, then the holders of record of 10% or more of the Serial Preferred Shares then in issue may
designate in writing one of their number to call such meeting, and the person so designated may call such meeting to be held at
the place and upon the notice above provided and for that purpose shall have access to the Register. No such extraordinary
general meeting and no adjournment thereof shall be held on a date later than 30 days before the annual general meeting of the
Shareholders or extraordinary general meeting held in place thereof next succeeding the time when the holders of the Serial
Preferred Shares become entitled to elect Directors as above provided. If any such special meeting shall be called as above
provided, then, by vote of the holders of at least a majority of those Serial Preferred Shares which are present or represented by
proxy at such meeting, the then authorised number of Directors of the Company shall be increased by two and at such meeting,
the holders of the Serial Preferred Shares shall be entitled to elect the additional Directors so provided for, but any Directors so
elected shall not hold office beyond the annual general meeting of the Shareholders or extraordinary general meeting held in
place thereof next succeeding the time when the holders of the Serial Preferred Shares become entitled to elect Directors as
above provided.

Whenever the holders of the Serial Preferred Shares shall be divested of the voting power as above provided, the terms of office
of all persons elected as Directors by the holders of the Serial Preferred Shares as a class shall forthwith terminate and the
number of Directors shall be reduced accordingly.

The two Directors who may be elected by the holders of Serial Preferred Shares pursuant to the foregoing provisions shall be in
addition to any other Directors then in office or proposed to be elected otherwise than pursuant to such provisions, and nothing
in such provisions shall prevent any change otherwise permitted in the total number of Directors of the Company or require the
resignation of any Director elected otherwise than pursuant to such provisions.

In addition to any requirements of the Companies Acts, the vote or consent of the holders of at least two-thirds of the then issued
Serial Preferred Shares, given in person or by proxy, either in writing or at a meeting called for the purpose at which the holders
of Serial Preferred Shares shall vote separately as a class, shall be necessary to effect any one or more of the following (but so
far as the holders of Serial Preferred Shares are concerned, such action may be effected with such vote or consent):

(i) Any amendment, alteration or repeal of any of the provisions of these Articles of association or the Company’s
memorandum of association which affects adversely the voting powers, rights or preferences of the holders of Serial
Preferred Shares; provided, however, that for the purpose of this Article (i) only, neither the amendment of these Articles
to authorise, or to increase the authorised or issued number of Serial Preferred Shares or of any class ranking on a
parity with or junior to the Serial Preferred Shares, nor the increase by the Shareholders pursuant to these Articles of the
number of Directors of the Company shall be deemed to affect adversely the voting
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(h)

powers, rights or preferences of the holders of Serial Preferred Shares; and provided, further, that if such amendment,
alteration or repeal affects adversely the rights or preferences of one or more but not all of the then issued series of
Serial Preferred Shares, only the vote or consent of the holders of at least two-thirds of the number of the then issued
shares of the series so affected shall be required;

(i) The authorisation of, or the increase in the authorised number of, any shares of any class ranking prior to the Serial
Preferred Shares;

(iii) The purchase or redemption (whether for sinking fund purposes or otherwise) of less than all of the then issued Serial
Preferred Shares except in accordance with a purchase offer made to all holders of record of Serial Preferred Shares,
unless all dividends on all Serial Preferred Shares then issued for all previous quarterly dividend periods shall have been
declared and paid or funds thereof set apart and all accrued sinking fund obligations applicable to all Serial Preferred
Shares shall have been complied with.

The vote or consent of the holders of at least a majority of the then issued Serial Preferred Shares, given in person or by proxy,
either in writing or at a meeting called for the purpose at which the holders of Serial Preferred Shares shall vote separately as a
class, shall be necessary (but so far as the holders of Serial Preferred Shares are concerned such action may be effected with
such vote or consent) to authorise the creation or issue of any shares ranking on a parity with the Serial Preferred Shares or an
increase in the authorised number of shares of Serial Preferred Shares.

7.7 No holder of the Serial Preferred Shares of any series shall be entitled as such as a matter of right to subscribe for or purchase any part
of any issue of securities of the Company, of any class whatsoever, or any part of any issue of securities convertible into shares of the
Company, of any class whatsoever, and whether issued for cash, property, services, or otherwise.

7.8 For the purposes of this Article 7:

(a)

(b)

(c)
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Whenever reference is made to shares “ranking prior to the Serial Preferred Shares”, such reference shall mean and include all
shares of the Company in respect of which the rights of the holders thereof as to the payment of dividends or as to distributions
in the event of a voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the corporation are given preference over the
rights of the holders of Serial Preference Shares.

Whenever reference is made to shares “ranking junior to the Serial Preferred Shares”, such reference shall mean and include all
shares of the Company in respect of which the rights of the holders thereof as to the payment of dividends or as to distributions
in the event of a voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the corporation rank on an equality with the
rights of the holders of Serial Preferred Shares.

Whenever reference is made to shares “ranking junior to the Serial Preferred Shares”, such reference shall mean and include all
shares of the Company in respect of which the rights of the holders thereof as to the payment of dividends and as to distributions
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8.1

9.1

9.2

9.3

in the event of a voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the corporation are junior or subordinate to the
rights of the holders of Serial Preferred Shares.

A PREFERRED SHARES
The A Preferred Shares shall entitle the holders thereof to the following rights:
(a) as regards dividends:

the holder of the A Preferred Shares shall be entitled in priority to any payment of dividend on any other class of shares in the
Company to be paid a dividend in an amount per A Preferred Share equal to twice the dividend to be paid per Ordinary Shared;

(b) as regards capital:

on a return of assets, whether on liquidation or otherwise, the A Preferred Shares shall entitle the holder thereof to repayment of
the capital paid up thereon (including any share premium) in priority to any repayment of capital to the holder(s) of any other
shares and the holders of the A Preferred Shares (as such) shall not be entitled to any further participation in the assets or
profits of the Company; and

(c) as regards voting in general meetings:

the holders of the A Preferred Shares shall not be entitled to receive notice of, nor to attend, speak or vote at any meeting of
some or all of the Shareholders of the Company.

VARIATION OF RIGHTS

If at any time the share capital is divided into different classes of shares, the rights attached to any class (unless otherwise provided by
the terms of issue of the shares of that class) may, subject to the provisions of the Acts whether or not the Company is being wound up,
be varied or abrogated with the consent in writing of the holders of three fourths of the issued shares of that class, or with the sanction of
a special resolution passed at a separate general meeting of the holders of the shares of the class but not otherwise.

The rights conferred upon the holders of the shares of any class shall not, unless otherwise expressly provided by the terms of issue of
such shares, be deemed to be varied by the creation or issue of further shares ranking pari passu therewith.

To every such separate general meeting held pursuant to Article 9 all the provisions of these Articles relating to general meetings of the
Company shall apply but so that the necessary quorum shall be two persons at least holding or representing by proxy one-third in
nominal amount of the issued shares of that class (but so that if at any adjourned meeting of such members a quorum as above defined
is not present those members who are present shall be a quorum). Any holder of the shares of the class present in person or by proxy
may demand a poll each such person shall upon such poll have one vote in respect of every share of the class held by him respectively.

12
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10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

1.

12.

13.

13.1

ALTERATION OF SHARE CAPITAL

The Company may by ordinary resolution:

(a) increase its share capital by new shares of such amount as the resolution prescribes;

(b) consolidate and divide all or any of its share capital into shares of larger amount than its existing shares;

(c) subject to the provisions of the Acts sub-divide its shares, or any of them, into shares of smaller amount and the resolution may
determine that, as between the shares resulting from the sub-division, any of them may have any preference or advantage as
compared with the others; and

(d) cancel shares which, at the date of the passing of the resolution, have not been taken or agreed to be taken by any person and
diminish the amount of its share capital by the amount of the shares so cancelled.

Whenever as a result of a consolidation of shares any members would become entitled to fractions of a share, the Directors may, on
behalf of those members, sell the shares representing the fractions for the best price reasonably obtainable to any person (including,
subject to the provisions of the Acts the Company) and distribute the net proceeds of sale in due proportion among those members, and
the Directors may authorise some person to execute an instrument of transfer of the shares to, or in accordance with the directions of,
the purchaser. The transferee shall not be bound to see to the application of the purchase money nor shall his title to the shares be
affected by any irregularity in or invalidity of the proceedings in reference to the sale.

Subject to the provisions of the Acts the Company may by special resolution reduce its share capital, any capital redemption reserve and
any share premium account in any way.

COMMISSIONS

The Company may exercise the powers of paying commissions conferred by the Acts. Subject to the provisions of the Acts any such
commission may be satisfied by the payment of cash or by the allotment of fully or partly paid shares or partly in one way and partly in
the other.

TRUSTS NOT RECOGNISED

Except as required by law, no person shall be recognised by the Company as holding any share upon any trust and (except as otherwise
provided by the Articles or by law) the Company shall not be bound by or recognise any interest in any share except an absolute right to
the entirety thereof in the holder. This shall not preclude the Company from requiring the members or a transferee of shares to furnish
the Company with information as to the beneficial ownership of any share when such information is reasonably required by the
Company.

ALLOTMENT OF SHARES

The Directors are hereby generally and unconditionally authorised pursuant to section 20 of the 1983 Act to allot relevant securities (as
defined for this purpose by section 20(10) of the
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13.2

13.3

14.

14.1

14.2

15.

15.1

15.2

1983 Act) up to an aggregate nominal amount equal to the authorised but as yet unissued share capital of the Company at the date of
adoption of these Articles for a period expiring (unless previously renewed, varied or revoked by the Company in general meeting) five
years after the date of adoption of these Articles. The Company may before such expiry make an offer or agreement which would or
might require relevant securities to be allotted after that expiry and the Directors may allot relevant securities in pursuance of that offer or
agreement as if that authority had not expired.

The pre-emption provisions in section 23(1) of the 1983 Act shall not apply to any allotment of the Company’s equity securities.
Subject to any resolution of the Company in general meeting:

(a) all unissued shares for the time being in the capital of the Company (whether forming part of the original or any increased share
capital) shall be at the disposal of the Directors; and

(b) the Directors may allot (with or without conferring a right of renunciation), grant options over, or otherwise dispose of them to
such persons on such terms and conditions and at such times as they think fit.

SHARE CERTIFICATES

Every member, upon becoming the holder of any shares, shall be entitled without payment to receive within two months after allotment
or lodgement of a duly stamped transfer (or within such other period as the conditions of issue shall provide) one certificate for all the
shares of each class held by him (and, upon transferring a part of his holding of shares of any class, to a certificate for the balance of
such holding) or several certificates each for one or more of his shares upon payment for every certificate after the first of such
reasonable sum as the Directors may determine. Every certificate shall be executed under seal in accordance with these Articles and
shall specify the number, class and distinguishing numbers (if any) of the shares to which it relates and the amount or respective
amounts paid up thereon. The Company shall not be bound to issue more than one certificate for shares held jointly by several persons
and delivery of a certificate to one joint holder shall be a sufficient delivery to all of them.

If a share certificate is defaced, worn-out, lost or destroyed, it may be renewed on such terms (if any) as to evidence and indemnity and
payment of the expenses reasonably incurred by the Company in investigating evidence as the Directors may determine but otherwise
free of charge, and (in the case of defacement or wearing-out) on delivery up of the old certificate.

LIEN

The Company shall have a first and paramount lien on every share (not being a fully paid share) for all moneys (whether immediately
payable or not) payable at a fixed time or called in respect of that share. The Directors may at any time declare any share to be wholly or
in part exempt from the provisions of this Article. The Company’s lien on a share shall extend to all dividends payable thereon.

The Company may sell in such manner as the Directors determine any shares on which the Company has a lien if a sum in respect of
which the lien exists is presently payable and is not paid within 14 Clear Days after notice has been given to the holder of the share or to
the
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15.3

15.4

16.

16.1

16.2

16.3

16.4

16.5

16.6

17.

171

person entitled to it in consequence of the death or bankruptcy of the holder, demanding payment and stating that if the notice is not
complied with the shares may be sold.

To give effect to a sale the Directors may authorise some person to execute an instrument of transfer of the shares sold to, or in
accordance with the directions of, the purchaser. The title of the transferee to the shares shall not be affected by any irregularity in or
invalidity of the proceedings in reference to the sale.

The net proceeds of the sale, after payment of the costs, shall be applied in payment of so much of the sum for which the lien exists as is
immediately payable, and any residue shall (upon surrender to the Company for cancellation of the certificate for the shares sold and
subject to a like lien for any moneys not immediately payable as existed upon the shares before the sale) be paid to the person entitled
to the shares at the date of the sale.

CALLS ON SHARES

Subject to the terms of allotment, the Directors may make calls upon the members in respect of any moneys unpaid on their shares
(whether in respect of nominal value or premium) and each member shall (subject to receiving at least 14 Clear Days’ notice specifying
when and where payment is to be made) pay to the Company as required by the notice the amount called on his shares. A call may be
required to be paid by instalments. A call may, before receipt by the Company of any sum due thereunder, be revoked in whole or part
and payment of a call may be postponed in whole or part. A person upon whom a call is made shall remain liable for calls made upon
him notwithstanding the subsequent transfer of the shares in respect whereof the call was made.

A call shall be deemed to have been made at the time when the resolution of the Directors authorising the call was passed.
The joint holders of a share shall be jointly and severally liable to pay all calls in respect thereof.

If a call remains unpaid after it has become due and payable the person from whom it is due and payable shall pay interest on the
amount unpaid from the day it became due and payable until it is paid at the rate fixed by the terms of allotment of the share or in the
notice of the call or, if no rate is fixed, at the appropriate rate (as defined by the Acts) but the Directors may waive payment of the interest
wholly or in part.

An amount payable in respect of a share on allotment or at any fixed date, whether in respect of nominal value or premium or as an
instalment of a call, shall be deemed to be a call and if it is not paid the provisions of these Articles shall apply as if that amount had
become due and payable by virtue of a call.

Subject to the terms of allotment, the Directors may make arrangements on the issue of shares for a difference between the holders in
the amounts and times of payment of calls on their shares.

FORFEITURE OF SHARES
If a call remains unpaid after it has become due and payable the Directors may give to the person from whom it is due not less than 14

Clear Days’ notice requiring payment of the amount unpaid together with any interest which may have accrued. The notice shall name
the
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place where payment is to be made and shall state that if the notice is not complied with the shares in respect of which the call was
made will be liable to be forfeited.

If the notice is not complied with any share in respect of which it was given may, before the payment required by the notice has been
made, be forfeited by a resolution of the Directors and the forfeiture shall include all dividends or other moneys payable in respect of the
forfeited shares and not paid before the forfeiture.

Subject to the provisions of the Acts a forfeited share may be sold, re-allotted or otherwise disposed of on such terms and in such
manner as the Directors determine either to the person who was before the forfeiture the holder or to any other person and at any time
before sale, re-allotment or other disposition, the forfeiture may be cancelled on such terms as the Directors think fit. Where for the
purposes of its disposal a forfeited share is to be transferred to any person the Directors may authorise some person to execute an
instrument of transfer of the share to that person.

A person any of whose shares have been forfeited shall cease to be a member in respect of them and shall surrender to the Company
for cancellation the certificate for the shares forfeited but shall remain liable to the Company for all moneys which at the date of forfeiture
were presently payable by him to the Company in respect of those shares with interest at the rate at which interest was payable on those
moneys before the forfeiture or, if no interest was so payable, at the appropriate rate (as defined in the Acts) from the date of forfeiture
until payment but the Directors may waive payment wholly or in part or enforce payment without any allowance for the value of the
shares at the time of forfeiture or for any consideration received on their disposal.

A statutory declaration by a Director or the Secretary that a share has been forfeited on a specified date shall be conclusive evidence of
the facts stated in it as against all persons claiming to be entitled to the share and the declaration shall (subject to the execution of an
instrument of transfer if necessary) constitute a good title to the share and the person to whom the share is disposed of shall not be
bound to see to the application of the consideration, if any, nor shall his title to the share be affected by any irregularity in or invalidity of
the proceedings in reference to the forfeiture or disposal of the share.

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

The Company may give any form of financial assistance which is permitted by the Acts for the purpose of or in connection with a
purchase or subscription made or to be made by any person of or for any shares in the Company or in the Company’s holding company.

TRANSFER OF SHARES

The instrument of transfer of a share may be in any usual form or in any other form which the Directors may approve and shall be
executed by or on behalf of the transferor and, unless the share is fully paid, by or on behalf of the transferee.

The Directors may, in their absolute discretion and without giving any reason, refuse to register the transfer of a share to any person,
whether or not it is fully paid or a share on which the Company has a lien.
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221

If the Directors refuse to register a transfer of a share, they shall within two months after the date on which the transfer was lodged with
the Company send to the transferee notice of the refusal.

The registration of transfers of shares or of transfers of any class of shares may be suspended at such times and for such periods (not
exceeding thirty days in any year) as the Directors may determine.

No fee shall be charged for the registration of any instrument of transfer or other document relating to or affecting the title to any share.

The Company shall be entitled to retain any instrument of transfer which is registered, but any instrument of transfer which the Directors
refuse to register shall be returned to the person lodging it when notice of the refusal is given.

TRANSMISSION OF SHARES

If a member dies the survivor or survivors where he was a joint holder, and his personal representatives where he was a sole holder or
the only survivor of joint holders, shall be the only persons recognised by the Company as having any title to his interest; but nothing
herein contained shall release the estate of a deceased member from any liability in respect of any share which had been jointly held by
him.

A person becoming entitled to a share in consequence of the death or bankruptcy of a member may, upon such evidence being
produced as the Directors may properly require, elect either to become the holder of the share or to have some person nominated by him
registered as the transferee. If he elects to become the holder he shall give notice to the Company to that effect. If he elects to have
another person registered he shall execute an instrument of transfer of the share to that person. All the articles relating to the transfer of
shares shall apply to the notice or instrument of transfer as if it were an instrument of transfer executed by the member and the death or
bankruptcy of the member had not occurred.

A person becoming entitled to a share in consequence of the death or bankruptcy of a member shall have the rights to which he would
be entitled if he were the holder of the share, except that he shall not, before being registered as the holder of the share, be entitled in
respect of it to attend or vote at any meeting of the Company or at any separate meeting of the holders of any class of shares in the
Company.

PURCHASE OF OWN SHARES

Subject to the provisions of the 1990 Act, the Company may purchase its own shares (including any redeemable shares).

GENERAL MEETINGS

Annual general meetings of the Company shall be held in the State unless in respect of any particular such meeting either:

(a) all the members entitled to attend and vote at such meetings consent in writing to its being held elsewhere; or
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(b) a resolution providing that it be held elsewhere has been passed at the preceding annual general meeting.

Unless the Company has a single member and has dispensed, pursuant to Regulation 9 of the European Communities (Single-Member
Private Limited Companies) Regulations 1994 with the requirement to hold annual general meetings:

(a) subject to Article 22.2(b) the Company shall in each year hold a general meeting as its annual general meeting in addition to any
other meeting in that year, and shall specify the meeting as such in the notices calling it; and not more than 15 months shall
elapse between the date of one annual general meeting of the Company and that of the next;

(b) so long as the Company holds its first annual general meeting within 18 months of its incorporation, it need not hold it in the year
of its incorporation or in the year following. Subject to Article 22.1, the annual general meeting shall be held at such time and
place as the Directors shall appoint.

All general meetings other than annual general meetings shall be called extraordinary general meetings.

The Directors may, whenever they think fit, convene an extraordinary general meeting, and extraordinary general meetings shall also be
convened on such requisition, or in default, may be convened by such requisitions, as provided by section 132 of the Act.

Where for any purpose an ordinary resolution of the Company is required a special resolution shall also be effective.
NOTICE OF GENERAL MEETINGS

An annual general meeting and an extraordinary general meeting called for the passing of a special resolution shall be called by at least
21 Clear Days’ notice. All other extraordinary general meetings shall be called by at least 7 Clear Days’ notice but a general meeting
may be called by shorter notice if it is so agreed:

(a) in the case of an annual general meeting, by the auditors and all the members entitled to attend and vote thereat; and

(b) in the case of any other meeting, by a majority in number of the members having a right to attend and vote being a majority
together holding not less than 90% in nominal value of the shares giving that right.

Where, by any provision contained in the Acts extended notice is required of a resolution, the resolution shall not be effective unless
(except when the Directors have resolved to submit it) notice of the intention to move it has been given to the Company not less than 28
Clear Days (or such other period as the Acts permit) before the meeting at which it is to be moved, and the Company shall give to the
members notice of any such resolutions as required by and in accordance with the provisions of the Acts.

The notice shall specify the time and place of the meeting and in the case of special business the general nature of the business to be
transacted and, in the case of an annual general meeting, shall specify the meeting as such.
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Subject to the provisions of the Articles and to any restrictions imposed on any shares, the notice shall be given to all the members, to all
persons entitled to a share in consequence of the death or bankruptcy of a member and to the auditors.

The accidental omission to give notice of a meeting to, or the non-receipt of notice of a meeting by, any person entitled to receive notice
shall not invalidate the proceedings at that meeting.

PROCEEDINGS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

All business shall be deemed special that is transacted at an extraordinary general meeting, and also all that is transacted at an annual
general meeting, with the exception of declaring a dividend, the consideration of the accounts, balance sheets and the reports of the
Directors and Auditors, the election of Directors in the place of those retiring, the re-appointment of the retiring Auditors and the fixing of
the remuneration of the Auditors.

No business shall be transacted at any meeting unless a quorum is present. Two persons entitled to vote upon the business to be
transacted, each being a member or a proxy for a member or a duly authorised representative of a corporation, shall be a quorum
provided that, in circumstances where there is only one member of the Company, the quorum for a general meeting shall for all purposes
be that member so present.

If such a quorum is not present within half an hour from the time appointed for the meeting, or if during a meeting such a quorum ceases
to be present, the meeting if convened upon the requisition of members shall be dissolved, in any other case it shall stand adjourned to
the same day in the next week at the same time and place or to such time and place as the Directors may determine, and if at the
adjourned meeting a quorum is not present, within half an hour from the time appointed for the meeting, the member(s) present shall be
a quorum.

The chairman, if any, of the board of Directors or in his absence some other Director nominated by the Directors shall preside as
chairman of the meeting, but if neither the chairman nor such other Director (if any) be present within fifteen minutes after the time
appointed for holding the meeting and willing to act, the Directors present shall elect one of their number to be chairman and, if there is
only one Director present and willing to act, he shall be chairman.

If no Director is willing to act as chairman, or if no Director is present within fifteen minutes after the time appointed for holding the
meeting, the members present and entitled to vote shall choose one of their number to be chairman.

A Director shall, notwithstanding that he is not a member, be entitled to attend and speak at any general meeting and at any separate
meeting of the holders of any class of shares in the Company.

The chairman may, with the consent of a meeting at which a quorum is present (and shall if so directed by the meeting), adjourn the
meeting from time to time and from place to place, but no business shall be transacted at an adjourned meeting other than business
which might properly have been transacted at the meeting had the adjournment not taken place. When a meeting is adjourned for 30
days or more, notice of the adjourned meeting shall be given as in the case of an original meeting. Otherwise it shall not be necessary to
give any such notice.
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A resolution put to the vote of a meeting shall be decided on a show of hands unless before, or on the declaration of the result of, the
show of hands a poll is duly demanded. Subject to the provisions of the Acts a poll may be demanded:

(a) by the chairman; or
(b) by at least two members present in person or by proxy having the right to vote at the meeting; or

(c) by a member or members present in person or by proxy representing not less than one-tenth of the total voting rights of all the
members having the right to vote at the meeting; or

(d) by a member or members holding shares conferring a right to vote at the meeting being shares on which an aggregate sum has
been paid up equal to not less than one-tenth of the total sum paid up on all the shares conferring that right;

and a demand by a person as proxy for a member shall be the same as a demand by the member.

Unless a poll is demanded a declaration by the chairman that a resolution has been carried or carried unanimously, or by a particular
majority, or lost, or not carried by a particular majority and an entry to that effect in the minutes of the meeting shall be conclusive
evidence of the fact without proof of the number or proportion of the votes recorded in favour of or against the resolution.

The demand for a poll may, before the poll is taken, be withdrawn and a demand so withdrawn shall not be taken to have invalidated the
result of a show of hands declared before the demand was made.

A poll shall be taken as the chairman directs and he may appoint scrutineers (who need not be members) and fix a time and place for
declaring the result of the poll. The result of the poll shall be deemed to be the resolution of the meeting at which the poll was demanded.

In the case of an equality of votes, whether on a show of hands or on a poll, the chairman shall be entitled to a casting vote in addition to
any other vote he may have.

A poll demanded on the election of a chairman or on a question of adjournment shall be taken forthwith. A poll demanded on any other
question shall be taken either forthwith or at such time and place as the chairman directs not being more than thirty days after the poll is
demanded. The demand for a poll shall not prevent the continuance of a meeting for the transaction of any business other than the
question on which the poll was demanded. If a poll is demanded before the declaration of the result of a show of hands and the demand
is duly withdrawn, the meeting shall continue as if the demand had not been made.

No notice need be given of a poll not taken forthwith if the time and place at which it is to be taken are announced at the meeting at

which it is demanded. In any other case at least 7 Clear Days' notice shall be given specifying the time and place at which the poll is to
be taken.
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MEMBERS RESOLUTIONS IN WRITING

A resolution in writing executed by or on behalf of each member who would have been entitled to vote on it if it had been proposed at a
general meeting at which he was present shall be as effective as if it had been passed at a general meeting properly convened and held
and if described as a special resolution shall be deemed to be a special resolution within the meaning of the Act. Such a resolution may
consist of several instruments each executed by or on behalf of one or more of the members, or a combination of both.

VOTES OF MEMBERS

Subject to any rights or restrictions for the time being attached to any class or classes of shares, on a show of hands every member
present in person and every proxy, shall have one vote and on a poll every member shall have one vote for each share of which he is the
holder.

Where there are joint holders the vote of the senior who tenders a vote, whether in person or by proxy, shall be accepted to the exclusion
of the votes of the other joint holders; and for this purpose seniority shall be determined by the order in which the names stand in the
register of members.

A member of unsound mind or in respect of whom an order has been made by any court having jurisdiction (whether in Ireland or
elsewhere) in matters concerning mental disorder may vote, whether on a show of hands or on a poll, by his committee, receiver,
guardian or other person authorised in that behalf appointed by that court, and any such committee, receiver, guardian or other person
may vote by proxy on a show of hands or on a poll. Evidence to the satisfaction of the Directors of the authority of the person claiming to
exercise the right to vote shall be deposited at the Office, or at such other place as is specified in accordance with the Articles for the
deposit of instruments of proxy, not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or adjourned meeting at which
the right to vote is to be exercised and in default the right to vote shall not be exercisable.

No member shall vote at any general meeting or at any separate meeting of the holders of any class of shares in the Company, either in
person or by proxy, in respect of any share held by him unless all moneys immediately payable by him in respect of that share have
been paid.

No objection shall be raised to the qualification of any voter except at the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the vote objected to is
given or tendered, and every vote not disallowed at the meeting shall be valid. Any objection made in due time shall be referred to the
chairman of the meeting whose decision shall be final and conclusive.

Votes may be given either personally or by proxy and a person entitled to more than one vote need not use all his votes or cast all the
votes he uses in the same way.

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointer or of his attorney duly authorised in writing, or, if the
appointer is a body corporate either under seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised. A proxy need not be a
member and a member may appoint more than one proxy.

The instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is signed or a notarially certified

copy of that power or authority shall be deposited at the Office or at such other place within the State as is specified for that purpose in
the notice convening the meeting, before the time for holding the meeting or adjourned meeting at which
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the person named in the instrument proposes to vote, or in the case of a poll before the time appointed for the taking of the poll, and, in
default, the instrument of proxy shall not be treated as valid.

An instrument appointing a proxy shall be in the following form or in any other form which the Directors may accept:
“[e] Limited
I/ We of

being a member / members of the above-named Company hereby appoint [e] of [e], or failing him [e] of [e] as my / our proxy to exercise
the voting rights attached to [all / [e]] of the shares in the Company held by me / us on my / our behalf at the (annual or extraordinary, as
the case may be) general meeting of the Company to be held on [e] and at any adjournment thereof

Signed [e] (Date)

This form is to used *in favour of / against the resolution.

Unless otherwise instructed, the proxy will vote as he thinks fit.

*strike out whichever is not desired.”

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be deemed to confer authority to demand or join in demanding a poll.

A vote given in accordance with the terms of an instrument of proxy shall be valid notwithstanding the previous death or insanity of the
principal or revocation of the proxy or of the authority under which the proxy was executed or the transfer of the share in respect of which
the proxy is given, if no intimation in writing of such death, insanity, revocation or transfer as aforesaid is received by the Company at the
Office before the commencement of the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the proxy is used.

Any body corporate which is a member of the Company may, by resolution of its Directors or other governing body, authorise such
person as it thinks fit to act as its representative at any meeting of the Company or of any class of members of the Company, and the
person so authorised shall be entitled to exercise the same powers on behalf of the body corporate which he represents as that body
corporate could exercise if it were an individual member of the Company.

DIRECTORS

Unless otherwise determined by ordinary resolution, the number of Directors (other than alternate Directors) shall be not less than two
and shall not be more than seven. The first Directors of the Company shall be deemed to have been appointed pursuant to section 3(5)
of the Companies (Amendment) Act 1982.

The Directors shall be entitled to such remuneration as the Company may by ordinary resolution determine and, unless the resolution

provides otherwise, the remuneration shall be deemed to accrue from day to day. The Directors may be paid all travelling, hotel, and
other expenses properly incurred by them in connection with their attendance at meetings of
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Directors or committees of Directors or general meetings or separate meetings of the holders of any class of shares or of debentures of
the Company or otherwise in connection with the discharge of their duties.

No Director shall be required to hold a share qualification but each Director shall nevertheless be entitled to receive notice of and to
attend and speak at every general meeting of the Company.

A Director may be or become a director or other officer of, or otherwise interested in, any company promoted by the Company or in
which the Company may be interested as shareholder or otherwise, and no such Director shall be accountable to the Company for any
remuneration or other benefits received by him as a director or officer of, or from his interest in, such other company unless the
Company otherwise directs.

BORROWING POWERS

The Directors may exercise all of the powers of the Company to borrow money and to mortgage or charge its undertaking, property and
uncalled capital or any part thereof and to issue debentures, debenture stock and other securities whether outright or as a security for
any debt, liability or obligations of the Company or any third party without any limitation as to amount.

POWERS AND DUTIES OF DIRECTORS

Subject to the provisions of the Acts the memorandum and the Articles and to any directions given by special resolution, the business of
the Company shall be managed by the Directors who may exercise all the powers of the Company. No alteration of the memorandum or
Articles and no such direction shall invalidate any prior act of the Directors which would have been valid if that alteration had not been
made or that direction had not been given.

The Directors may from time to time and at any time by power of attorney appoint any company, firm or person or body of persons,
whether nominated directly or indirectly by the Directors, to be the attorney or attorneys of the Company for such purposes and with such
powers, authorities and discretions (not exceeding those vested in or exercisable by the Directors under these Articles) and for such
period and subject to such conditions as they think fit, and any such power of attorney may contain such provisions for the protection for
persons dealing with any such attorney as the Directors may think fit, and may also authorise any such attorney to delegate all or any of
the powers, authorities and discretions vested in him.

The Directors may exercise the voting power conferred by the shares in any body corporate held or owned by the Company in such
manner in all respects as they think fit (including without limitation the exercise of that power in favour of any resolution appointing its
members or any of them Directors of such body corporate, or voting or providing for the payment of remuneration to the Directors of such
body corporate).

A Director who is in any way, whether directly or indirectly, interested in a contract or proposed contract with the Company shall declare
the nature of his interest at a meeting of the Directors in accordance with Section 194 of the Act.

A Director may vote in respect of any contract, appointment or arrangement in which he is interested and he shall be counted in the
quorum present at the meeting.
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A Director may hold any other office or place of profit under the Company (other than the office of auditor) in conjunction with his office
as Director for such period and on such terms as to remuneration and otherwise as the Directors may determine and no Director or
intending Director shall be disqualified by his office from contracting with the Company either with regard to his tenure of any such other
office or place of profit or as vendor, purchaser or otherwise, nor shall any such contract or any contract or arrangement entered into by
or on behalf of the Company in which any Director is in any way interested, be liable to be avoided nor shall any Director so contracting
or being so interested be liable to account to the Company for any profit realised by any such contract or arrangement by reason of such
Director holding that office or of the fiduciary relation thereby established.

A Director, notwithstanding his interest, may be counted in the quorum present at any meeting whereat he or any other Director is
appointed to hold any such office or place of profit under the Company or whereat the terms of any such appointment are arranged, and
he may vote on any such appointment or arrangement other than his own appointment or the arrangement of the terms thereof.

Any Director may act by himself or his firm in a professional capacity for the Company and he or his firm shall be entitled to remuneration
for professional services as if he were not a Director, but nothing herein contained shall authorise a Director or his firm to act as auditor
to the Company.

All cheques, promissory notes, drafts, bills of exchange and other negotiable instruments and all receipts from monies paid to the
Company shall be signed, drawn, accepted, endorsed or otherwise executed, as the case may be, by such person or persons and in
such manner as the Directors shall from time to time by resolution determine.

The Directors shall cause minutes to be made in books provided for the purpose:

(a) of all appointments of officers made by the Directors;

(b) of the names of the Directors present at each meeting of the Directors and of any committee of the Directors; and

(c) of all resolutions and proceedings at all meetings of the Company and of the Directors and of committees of Directors.

The Directors may provide benefits, whether by the payment of gratuities or pensions or by insurance or otherwise, for any Director who
has held but no longer holds any executive office or employment with the Company or with any body corporate which is or has been a
subsidiary of the Company or a predecessor in business of the Company or of any such subsidiary, and for any member of his family
(including a spouse and a former spouse) or any person who is or was dependent on him, and may (as well before as after he ceases to

hold such office or employment) contribute to any fund and pay premiums for the purchase or provision of any such benefit.

Without prejudice to the provisions of Article 29.11, the Directors may exercise all the powers of the Company to purchase and maintain
insurance for or for the benefit of any person who is or was:

(a) a Director, other officer, employee or auditor of the Company, or any body which is or was the holding company or subsidiary
undertaking of the Company, or in which the
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Company or such holding company or subsidiary undertaking has or had any interest (whether direct or indirect) or with which
the Company or such holding company or subsidiary undertaking is or was in any way allied or associated; or

(b) a trustee of any pension fund in which employees of the Company or any other body referred to in article 29.12(a) is or has been
interested,

including without limitation insurance against any liability incurred by such person in respect of any act or omission in the actual or
purported execution or discharge of his duties or in the exercise or purported exercise of his powers or otherwise in relation to his duties,
powers or offices in relation to the relevant body or fund.

The Directors may appoint any person, whether or not he is a Director, to hold such executive or official position (except that of Auditor)
as the Directors may from time to time determine. The same person may hold more than one office or executive or official position.

Any person elected or appointed pursuant to this Article 29 shall hold his office or other position for such period and on such terms as the
Directors may determine and the Directors may revoke or vary any such election or appointment at any time by resolution of the
Directors. Any such revocation or variation shall be without prejudice to any claim for damages that such person may have against the
Company or the Company may have against such person for any breach of any contract of service between him and the Company which
may be involved in such revocation or variation. If any such office or other position becomes vacant for any reason, the vacancy may be
filled by the Directors.

Except as provided in the Companies Acts or these articles, the powers and duties of any person elected or appointed to any office or
executive or official position pursuant to this article 28 shall be such as are determined from time to time by the Directors.

The use or inclusion of the word “officer” (or similar words) in the title of any executive or other position shall not be deemed to imply that
the person holding such executive or other position is an “officer” of the Company within the meaning of the Companies Acts.

DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

The office of a Director shall be vacated if:

(a) he ceases to be a Director by virtue of any provision of the Acts or he becomes prohibited by law from being a director; or
(b) he becomes bankrupt or makes any arrangement or composition with his creditors generally; or
(c) in the opinion of the board of Directors becomes incapable by reason of mental illness (as defined in the Mental Health Act 2001)

of discharging his duties as Director; or
(d) he resigns his office by notice in writing served on the Company or if he resigns his office by spoken declaration at any board
meeting and such resignation is accepted by resolution of that meeting, in which case such resignation shall take effect at the

conclusion of such meeting; or

(e) he is convicted of an indictable offence unless the Directors otherwise determine; or
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() he shall for more than six consecutive months have been absent without permission of the Directors from meetings of Directors
held during that period and the Directors resolve that his office be vacated.

(9) he is requested by his Co-Directors to vacate his office. Such request may be made in writing (and may be in counterparts) by
letter, email, facsimile or other means or alternatively may be made orally at a Board Meeting at which such Co-Directors are
present in person or by proxy, irrespective of whether the Director in respect of whom the request is being made is present or
not. The vacation of the said Director’s office as Director shall take effect on the date the request is made or, if later, the date
stated to be the effective date in that request.

ROTATION OF DIRECTORS
The Directors shall not retire by rotation.

The Directors shall have power at any time and from time to time to appoint any person to be a Director, either to fill a casual vacancy or
as an addition to the existing Directors, but so that the total number of Directors shall not at any time exceed the number fixed in
accordance with these Articles.

The members of the Company shall, by ordinary resolution, have the power at any time and from time to time to appoint any person to
be a Director, either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the existing Directors, but so that the total number of Directors shall not
at any time exceed the number fixed in accordance with these Articles.

PROCEEDINGS OF DIRECTORS

The Directors may meet together for the despatch of business, adjourn and otherwise regulate their meetings as they think fit. Questions
arising at any meeting shall be decided by a majority of votes. Where there is an equality of votes, the chairman shall have a second or
casting vote. A Director may, and the Secretary on the requisition of a Director shall, at any time summon a meeting of the Directors. If
the Directors so resolve, it shall not be necessary to give notice of a meeting of Directors to any Director who, being resident in the State,
is for the time being absent from the State.

The quorum necessary for the transaction of the business of the Directors may be fixed by the Directors, and unless so fixed shall be
two.

The continuing Directors may act notwithstanding any vacancy in their number but, if and so long as their number is reduced below the
number fixed by or pursuant to these Articles as the necessary quorum of Directors, the continuing Directors or Director may act for the
purpose of increasing the number of Directors to that number or of summoning a general meeting of the Company but for no other
purpose.

The Directors may elect a chairman of their meetings and determine the period for which he is to hold office, but if no such chairman is
elected, or, if at any meeting the chairman is not present within 5 minutes after the time appointed for holding the same, the Directors
present may choose one of their number to be chairman of the meeting.

The Directors may delegate any of their powers to any committee consisting of two or more Directors. The Directors may also delegate
to any Director holding any executive office such of
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their powers as the Directors consider desirable to be exercised by him. Any such delegation shall, in the absence of express provision
to the contrary in the terms of delegation, be deemed to include authority to sub-delegate all or any of the powers delegated to two or
more Directors (whether or not acting as a committee) or to any employee or agent of the Company. Any such delegation may be made
subject to such conditions as the Directors may specify, and may be revoked or altered. Subject to any conditions imposed by the
Directors, the proceedings of a committee with two or more members shall be governed by these Articles regulating the proceedings of
Directors so far as they are capable of applying.

A committee may elect a chairman of its meetings; if no such chairman is elected, or if at any meeting the chairman is not present within
5 minutes after the time appointed for holding the same, the members present may choose one of their number to be chairman of the
meeting.

A committee may meet and adjourn as it thinks proper. Questions arising at any meeting shall be determined by a majority of votes of
the members present, and where there is an equality of votes, the chairman shall have a second or casting vote.

All acts done by any meeting of the Directors or of a committee of Directors or by any person acting as a Director shall, notwithstanding
that it be afterwards discovered that there was some defect in the appointment of any such Director or person acting as aforesaid, or that
they or any of them were disqualified, be as valid as if every such person had been duly appointed and was qualified to be a Director.

For the purposes of these Articles, the contemporaneous linking together by telephone or other means of audio communication of a
number of Directors not less than the quorum shall be deemed to constitute a meeting of the Directors, and all the provisions in these
Articles as to meetings of the Directors shall apply to such meetings provided that:

(a) each of the Directors taking part in the meeting is able to speak, be heard and to hear each of the other Directors taking part;

(b) at the commencement of the meeting each Director acknowledges his presence and that he accepts that the conversation shall
be deemed to be a meeting of the Directors; and

(c) a Director may not cease to take part in the meeting by disconnecting his telephone or other means of communication unless he
has previously obtained the express consent of the chairman of the meeting, and a Director shall be conclusively presumed to
have been present and to have formed part of the quorum at all times during the meeting unless he has previously obtained the
express consent of the chairman of the meeting to leave the meeting as aforesaid.

A minute of the proceedings at such meeting by telephone or other means of communication shall be sufficient evidence of such
proceedings and of the observance of all necessary formalities if certified as a correct minute by the chairman of the meeting.

DIRECTORS’ RESOLUTIONS IN WRITING
A resolution in writing executed by all the Directors entitled to receive notice of a meeting of Directors or of a committee of Directors shall

be as valid and effectual as if it had been passed at a meeting of Directors or (as the case may be) a committee of Directors duly
convened and held. For this purpose
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(a) a resolution may be by means of an instrument sent to such address (if any) for the time being notified by the Company for that
purpose;

(b) a resolution may consist of several instruments, each executed by one or more Directors;
(c) a resolution executed by an alternate Director need not also be executed by his appointer; and

(d) a resolution executed by a Director who has appointed an alternate Director need not also be executed by the alternate Director
in that capacity.

MANAGING DIRECTOR OR CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The Directors may from time to time appoint one or more of themselves to the office of managing director or chief executive for such
period and on such terms as to remuneration and otherwise as they see fit, and, subject to the terms of any agreement entered into in
any particular case, may revoke such appointment. Without prejudice to any claim he may have for damages for breach of any contract
of service between him and the Company, the appointment of a Director so appointed shall be automatically terminated if he ceases
from any cause to be a Director but (without prejudice to any claim he may have for damages for breach of any contract of service
between him and the Company), his appointment shall be automatically determined if he ceases from any cause to be a Director.

A managing director or chief executive shall receive such remuneration whether by way of salary, commission or participation in the
profits, or partly in one way and partly in another, as the Directors may determine.

The Directors may entrust to and confer upon a managing director any of the powers exercisable by them upon such terms and
conditions and with such restrictions as they may think fit, and either collaterally with or to the exclusion of their own powers, and may
from time to time revoke, withdraw, alter or vary all or any of such powers.

ALTERNATE DIRECTORS

A Director (other than an alternate Director) may appoint any person willing to act, whether or not he is a Director of the Company, to be
an alternate Director and may remove from office an alternate Director so appointed by him.

An alternate Director shall be entitled to receive notice of all meetings of Directors and of all meetings of committees of Directors of
which his appointer is a member, to attend and vote at any such meeting at which the Director appointing him is not personally present,
and generally to perform all the functions of his appointer as a Director in his absence but shall not be entitled to receive any
remuneration from the Company for his services as an alternate Director.

A Director or any other person may act as alternate Director to represent more than one Director, and an alternate Director shall be
entitled at meetings of the Directors or any committee of the Directors to one vote for every Director whom he represents (and who is not
present) in addition to his own vote (if any) as a Director, but he shall count as only one for the purpose of determining whether a quorum
is present.
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An alternate Director may be repaid by the Company such expenses as might properly have been repaid to him if he had been a Director
but shall not be entitled to receive any remuneration from the Company in respect of his services as an alternate Director except such
part (if any) of the remuneration otherwise payable to his appointer as such appointer may by notice in writing to the Company from time
to time direct. An alternate Director shall be entitled to be indemnified by the Company to the same extent as if he were a Director.

An alternate Director shall cease to be an alternate Director:

(a) if his appointer ceases to be a Director; or
(b) if his appointer revokes his appointment; or
(c) on the happening of any event which, if he were a Director, would cause him to vacate his office as Director; or

(d) if he resigns his office by notice to the Company.

Any appointment or revocation by a Director under this Article shall be effected by notice in writing given under his hand to the Secretary
or deposited at the Office or in any other manner approved by the Directors.

Save as otherwise provided in the Articles, an alternate Director shall be deemed for all purposes to be a Director and shall alone be
responsible for his own acts and defaults and he shall not be deemed to be the agent of the Director appointing him.

SECRETARY

Subject to the provisions of the Acts the Secretary shall be appointed by the Directors for such term, at such remuneration and upon
such conditions as they may think fit; and any Secretary so appointed may be removed by them.

A provision of the Act or these Articles requiring or authorising a thing to be done by or to a Director and the Secretary shall not be
satisfied by its being done by or to the same person acting both as Director and as, or in place of, the Secretary.

COMPANY SEAL AND AUTHENTICATION OF DOCUMENTS

The seal shall only be used by the authority of a resolution of the Directors or of a committee of Directors authorised by the Directors in
that behalf and every instrument to which the seal shall be affixed shall be signed by at least one Director and the secretary or by at least
two Directors or by any other person authorised by the Directors. For the purpose of the preceding sentence only, “secretary” shall have

the same meaning as in the Acts and not the meaning given to it by Article 1.2.

The Company may exercise the powers conferred by section 41 of the Act with regard to having an official seal for use abroad, and such
powers shall be vested in the Directors.

Any Director or the Secretary or any person appointed by the Directors for the purpose shall have power to authenticate and certify as
true copies of and extracts from:

(a) any document comprising or affecting the constitution of the Company;
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(b) any resolution passed by the Company, the holders of any class of shares in the capital of the Company, the Directors or any
committee of the Directors; and

(c) any book, record and document relating to the business of the Company (including without limitation the accounts).

If certified in this way, a document purporting to be a copy of a resolution, or the minutes of or an extract from the minutes of a meeting
of the Company, the holders of any class of shares in the capital of the Company, the Directors or a committee of the Directors shall be
conclusive evidence in favour of all persons dealing with the Company in reliance on it or them that the resolution was duly passed or,
that the minutes are, or the extract from the minutes is, a true and accurate record of proceedings at a duly constituted meeting.

RECORD DATES

Notwithstanding any other provision of these Articles, the Company or the Directors may fix any date as the record date for any dividend,
distribution, allotment or issue, which may be on or at any time before or after any date on which the dividend, distribution, allotment or
issue is declared, paid or made.

DIVIDENDS

Subject to the provisions of the Acts the Company may by ordinary resolution declare dividends in accordance with the respective rights
of the members, but no dividend shall exceed the amount recommended by the Directors.

Subject to the provisions of the Acts the Directors may pay interim dividends or effect distributions of specific assets to members if it
appears to them that such interim dividends or distributions are justified by the profits of the Company available for distribution. In paying
such interim dividends the Directors may satisfy such payment wholly or partly by the distribution of specific assets and in particular, but
without limitation, of paid up shares, debentures or debenture stock of any other company or in any one or more of such ways, and shall
give effect to such resolution, and where any difficulty arises in regard to such distribution, the Directors may settle the same as they
think expedient, and in particular may issue fractional certificates and fix the value for distribution of such specific assets or any part
thereof and may determine that cash payment shall be made to any members upon the footing of the value so fixed, in order to adjust
the rights of all the parties, and may vest any such specific assets in trustees as may seem expedient to the Directors. If the share capital
is divided into different classes, the Directors may pay interim dividends on shares which confer deferred or non-preferred rights with
regard to dividend as well as on shares which confer preferential rights with regard to dividend, but no interim dividend shall be paid on
shares carrying deferred or non-preferred rights if, at the time of payment, any preferential dividend is in arrears. The Directors may also
pay at intervals settled by them any dividend payable at a fixed rate if it appears to them that the profits available for distribution justify
the payment. Provided the Directors act in good faith they shall not incur any liability to the holders of shares conferring preferred rights
for any loss they may suffer by the lawful payment of an interim dividend on any shares having deferred or non-preferred rights.

No dividend or interim dividend shall be paid otherwise than in accordance with the provisions of Part IV of the 1983 Act which apply to
the Company.
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The Directors may, before recommending any dividend, set aside out of the profits of the Company such sums as they think proper as a
reserve or reserves which shall, at the discretion of the Directors, be applicable for any purpose to which the profits of the Company may
be properly applied, and pending such application may, at the like discretion, either be employed in the business of the Company or be
invested in such investments as the Directors may lawfully determine. The Directors may also, without placing the same to reserve, carry
forward any profits which they way think it prudent not to divide.

Subject to the rights of persons, if any, entitled to shares with special rights as to dividend, all dividends shall be declared and paid
according to the amounts paid or credited as paid on the shares in respect whereof the dividend is paid, but no amount paid or credited
as paid on a share in advance of calls shall be treated for the purposes of this Article as paid on the share. All dividends shall be
apportioned and paid proportionately to the amounts paid or credited as paid on the shares during any portion or portions of the period in
respect of which the dividend is paid; but if any share is issued on terms providing that it shall rank for dividend as from a particular date,
such share shall rank for dividend accordingly.

The Directors may deduct from any dividend payable to any member all sums of money (if any) immediately payable by him to the
Company on account of calls or otherwise in relation to the shares of the Company.

Any general meeting declaring a dividend or bonus may direct payment of such dividend or bonus wholly or partly by the distribution of
specific assets and in particular, but without limitation, of paid up shares, debentures or debenture stock of any other Company or in any
one or more of such ways, and the Directors shall give effect to such resolution, and where any difficulty arises in regard to such
distribution, the Directors may settle the same as they think expedient, and in particular may issue fractional certificates and fix the value
for distribution of such specific assets or any part thereof and may determine that cash payments shall be made to any members upon
the footing of the value so fixed, in order to adjust the rights of all the parties, and may vest any such specific assets in trustees as may
seem expedient to the Directors.

Any dividend, interest or other moneys payable in cash in respect of any shares may be paid by cheque or warrant sent through the post
directed to the registered address of the holder, or, where there are joint holders, to the registered address of that one of the joint holders
who is first named on the register or to such person and to such address as the holder or joint holders may in writing direct. Every such

cheque or warrant shall be made payable to the order of the person to whom it is sent. Any one of two or more joint holders may give
effectual receipts for any dividends or other moneys payable in respect of the shares held by them as joint holders.

No dividend shall bear interest against the Company unless otherwise provided by the rights attached to the share.

Any dividend which has remained unclaimed for twelve years from the date when it became due for payment shall, if the Directors so
resolve, be forfeited and cease to remain owing by the Company.

ACCOUNTS

The Directors shall cause proper books of account to be kept relating to:
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(a) all sums of money received and expended by the Company and the matters in respect of which the receipt and expenditure
takes place;

(b) all sales and purchases of goods by the Company; and
(c) the assets and liabilities of the Company.

Proper books shall not be deemed to be kept if there are not kept such books of account as are necessary to give a true and fair view of
the state of the Company’s affairs and to explain its transactions.

The books of account shall be kept at the Office or, subject to compliance with the Acts at such other place as the Directors think fit, and
shall at all reasonable times be open to the inspection of the Directors.

The Directors shall from time to time determine whether and to what extent and at what times and places and under what conditions or
regulations the accounts and books of the Company or any of them shall be open to the inspection of members, not being Directors, and
no member (not being a Director) shall have any right of inspecting any account or book or document of the Company except as
conferred by statute or authorised by the Directors or by the Company in general meeting.

The Directors shall from time to time, in accordance with the Acts cause to be prepared and to be laid before the annual general meeting
of the Company such profit and loss accounts, balance sheets, group accounts and reports as are required by the Acts to be prepared
and laid before the annual general meeting of the Company.

A copy of every balance sheet (including every document required by law to be annexed thereto) which is to be laid before the annual
general meeting of the Company together with a copy of the Directors’ report and auditors’ report shall, not less than 21 days before the
date of the annual general meeting be sent to every person entitled under the provisions of the Act to receive them.

CAPITALISATION OF PROFITS
Subject to the provisions of the Acts the Directors may with the authority of an ordinary resolution of the Company:

(a) subject as hereinafter provided, resolve to capitalise any undivided profits of the Company not required for paying any
preferential dividend (whether or not they are available for distribution) or any sum standing to the credit of the Company's share
premium account or capital redemption reserve;

(b) appropriate the sum resolved to be capitalised to the members who would have been entitled to it if it were distributed by way of
dividend and in the same proportions and apply such sum on their behalf either in or towards paying up the amounts, if any, for
the time being unpaid on any shares held by them respectively, or in paying up in full unissued shares or debentures of the
Company of a nominal amount equal to that sum, and allot the shares or debentures credited as fully paid to those members, or
as they may direct, in those proportions, or partly in one way and partly in the other; but the share premium account, the capital
redemption reserve, and any profits which are
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not available for distribution may, for the purposes of this regulation, only be applied in paying up unissued shares to be allotted
to members credited as fully paid;

(c) make such provision by the issue of fractional certificates or by payment in cash or otherwise as they determine in the case of
shares or debentures becoming distributable under this regulation in fractions; and

(d) authorise any person to enter on behalf of all the members concerned into an agreement with the Company providing for the
allotment to them respectively, credited as fully paid, of any shares or debentures to which they are entitled upon such
capitalisation, any agreement made under such authority being binding on all such members.

AUDITORS

Auditors shall be appointed and their duties regulated in accordance with the provisions of the Acts.

Subject to the provisions of the Acts all acts done by any person acting as an auditors shall, as regards all persons dealing in good faith

with the Company, be valid, notwithstanding that there was some defect in his appointment or that he was at the time of his appointment

not qualified for appointment.

NOTICES

Any notice to be sent to or by any person pursuant to these Articles (other than a notice calling a meeting of the Directors) shall be in

writing to such address (if any) for the time being notified for that purpose to the person giving the notice by or on behalf of the person to

whom the notice is sent.

The Company shall send any notice or other document pursuant to these Articles to a member by whichever of the following methods it
may in its absolute discretion determine:

(a) personally; or

(b) by posting the notice or other document in a prepaid envelope addressed, in the case of a member, to his registered address, or
in any other case, to the person’s usual address; or

(c) by leaving the notice or other document at that address; or

(d) by any other method approved by the Directors.

Unless otherwise provided by these Articles, a member or a person entitled to a share in consequence of the death or bankruptcy of a
member shall send any notice or other document pursuant to these Articles to the Company by whichever of the following methods he
may in his absolute discretion determine:

(a) by posting the notice or other document in a prepaid envelope addressed to the Office; or

(b) by leaving the notice or other document at the Office.
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A member present, either in person or by proxy, at any meeting of the Company or of the holders of any class of shares in the capital of
the Company shall be deemed to have been sent notice of the meeting and, where requisite, of the purposes for which it was called.

Every person who becomes entitled to a share shall be bound by any notice in respect of that share which, before his name is entered in
the register of members, has been duly given to a person from whom he derives his title.

In the case of joint holders of a share, all notices or other documents shall be sent to the joint holder whose name stands first in the
register in respect of the joint holding. Any notice or other document so sent shall be deemed for all purposes sent to all the joint holders.

A member whose registered address is not within Ireland and who gives to the Company an address within Ireland at which a notice or
other document may be sent to him by instrument shall be entitled to have notices or other documents sent to him at that address but
otherwise:

(a) no such member shall be entitled to receive any notice or other document from the Company; and

(b) without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, any notice of a general meeting of the Company which is in fact sent or
purports to be sent to such member shall be ignored for the purpose of determining the validity of the proceedings at such
general meetings.

Proof that an envelope containing a notice or other document was properly addressed, prepaid and posted shall be conclusive evidence
that the notice or document was sent. A notice or other document sent by post shall be deemed sent:

(a) if sent by registered post from an address in Ireland to another address in Ireland, or by a postal service similar to registered post
from an address in another country to another address in that other country, on the day following that on which the envelope
containing it was posted;

(b) if sent by airmail from an address in Ireland to an address outside Ireland, or from an address in another country to an address
outside that country (including without limitation an address in Ireland), on the third day following that on which the envelope
containing it was posted; and

(c) in any other case, on the second day following that on which the envelope containing it was posted.

A notice or other document may be sent by the Company to the person or persons entitled to a share in consequence of the death or
bankruptcy of a member by sending, in any manner the Company may choose authorised by these Articles for the sending of a notice or
other document to a member, addressed to them by name, or by the title of representative of the deceased, or trustee of the bankrupt or
by any similar description at the address, if any, within Ireland as may be supplied for that purpose by and on behalf of the person or
persons claiming to be so entitled. Until such an address has been supplied, a notice or other document may be sent in any manner in
which it might have been sent if the death or bankruptcy had not occurred.
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44. WINDING UP

If the Company is wound up, the liquidator may, with the sanction of a special resolution of the Company and any other sanction required
by the Acts divide among the members in specie the whole or any part of the assets of the Company and may, for that purpose, value
any assets and determine how the division shall be carried out as between the members or different classes of members. The liquidator
may, with the like sanction, vest the whole or any part of the assets in trustees upon such trusts for the benefit of the members as he with
the like sanction determines, but no member shall be compelled to accept any assets upon which there is a liability.

45. INDEMNITY

Subject to the provisions of the Acts but without prejudice to any indemnity to which a Director may otherwise be entitled, the Company,
may at its discretion, provide that any Director or other officer or auditor of the Company shall be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against any liability incurred by him in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is given in his
favour or in which he is acquitted or in connection with any application in which relief is granted to him by the court from liability for
negligence, default, breach of duty or breach of trust in relation to the affairs of the Company.

Names, addresses and descriptions of subscribers

PATRICK SPICER

For and on behalf of

MATSACK NOMINEES LIMITED
70 Sir John Rogerson’s Quay
Dublin 2

Body Corporate
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Dated the 4th day of May 2012
Witness to the above signature:
Name: Sean Forde

Address: 70 Sir John Rogerson’s Quay, Dublin 2
Occupation: Company Secretary
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EX-31.1 3 ecl09302012ex311.htm EXHIBIT 31.1

Eaton Corporation Limited
Third Quarter 2012 Report on Form 10-Q
Item 6
Exhibit 31.1
Certification

I, Alexander M. Cutler, certify that:

1.
2.

I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Eaton Corporation Limited;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision,
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness
of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely
to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Date: November 14, 2012 /s/ Alexander M. Cutler

Alexander M. Cutler
Chief Executive Officer and President
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Eaton Corporation Limited
Third Quarter 2012 Report on Form 10-Q
Item 6
Exhibit 31.2
Certification

I, Richard H. Fearon, certify that:

1.
2.

I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Eaton Corporation Limited;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision,
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness
of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely
to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Date: November 14, 2012 /s/ Richard H. Fearon

Richard H. Fearon
Chief Financial and Planning Officer
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Certification

This written statement is submitted in accordance with Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. It accompanies Eaton Corporation Limited's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2012 (“10-Q
Report”).

I hereby certify that, based on my knowledge, the 10-Q Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
(15 U.S.C 78m), and information contained in the 10-Q Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of Eaton
Corporation Limited and its consolidated subsidiaries.

Date: November 14, 2012 /sl Alexander M. Cutler
Alexander M. Cutler
Chief Executive Officer and President
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Exhibit 32.2
Certification

This written statement is submitted in accordance with Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. It accompanies Eaton Corporation Limited's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2012 (“10-Q
Report”).

I hereby certify that, based on my knowledge, the 10-Q Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
(15 U.S.C 78m), and information contained in the 10-Q Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of Eaton
Corporation Limited and its consolidated subsidiaries.

Date: November 14, 2012 /s/ Richard H. Fearon

Richard H. Fearon
Chief Financial and Planning Officer
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